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Consolidated Three-Year Summary

(ACOM CO., LTD. and subsidiaries)

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Years ended March 31, 2000 2001 : ' 2002
For the year: - TR
Total operating income ¥ 343,644 ¥ 375,674 o ¥‘ 414,918 . § 34113;‘831"
Operating profit 145,488 160,310 R 171,’2_48‘ s "1.285,:1'63"
Net income 74,352 81369 S eses - T
At year-end: o o st
Total assets 1,708.030 1,943,836 C o Toaeesss 16,261651 -
Total shareholders’ equity 429,195 503,335 ; 1, 582,737 4,373,26():“ :
Loans receivable outstanding 1,347,757 1.497.045 S 1,61‘8,660 . 12"147,542‘;
Borrowings 1,196,883 1,333,568 1470366 TE0346AL

Amounts per share:
(in yen and U.S. dollars)

65318 - 8.
80,00

Net income, basic ¥ 507.07 ¥ 55493
Cash dividends* 55.00 65.00

* Amounts shown for cash dividends are non-consolidated data,

Key financial ratios:
{percentage)
Return on equity (ROE) ¢ 17.33 17.5
Return on assets (ROA) ¢ 443 45
Interest coverage (times) 6.0 6.4 \

Notes: 1. The translation of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts has been made solely for convenience. at the rate of 133,25= US$1.00, the exchange rate prevailing on March 29, 2002.
2. ROA and ROE are calculated using a simple average of beginning and end of term total assets and total shareholders’ equity figures, respectively.
3, As of fiscal 2000, year-end figures have been used for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Contents

Notes:

1. Forward-Looking Statements
The figures contained in this anmual report with respect to ACOM's plans and sirategles and other statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements about the future performance of
ACOM which are based on management’s assumptions and belief in light of the tnformation currently avatlable to management and involve risks and uncertainties and aciual results may differ from those in
the forward-looking statements as a result of various facts. Potential risks and uncertainties include, without limitation, generat economic conditions in ACOM's tarkel and changes in the size of the overall
market for consumer loans, the rate of defaull by customers, the level of interest rates paid on ACOM's debt and legal iimits on interest rates charged by ACOM.

2. All amounts are truncated to the nearest expressed unit.

3. Percentage Migures are a result of rounding.










Fresigent's Message

FY 2001 was a very difficult year
for consumer finance companies.
Although the fair conditions of the
previous financial year continued
through the first half of the year
under consideration, the second

half was a very different affair,
marked by slowing revenue
growth, rising unemployment and
personal bankruptcies. This, in
turn, led to an abrupt rise in bad
debts and slowing revenue growth
across the industry. Even ACOM
was not immune to the adverse
environment with revenues and
earnings falling marginally below
expectations. However, uniquely
among major consumer finance
lenders we were able to contain the
damage and report operating
income and net income
respectably above the level record-
ed during the previous year. A
detailed analysis of last year’s trad-
ing can be found elsewhere in this
report. For the purposes of this
review, [ would simply like to
point out that the reason for this
superior performance was two-
fold.

In the first place, although our
own credit costs did increase to a
certain extent, and beyond the
level we would consider accept-
able, we were not troubled by the
same surge in bad debts visible
elsewhere in the industry. This, in
turn, reflects our fundamentally
cautious attitude towards credit
risk as we have always stressed
credit quality in our business
processes. ‘

Qperating iiseme Growth

2 Avéyage Other 3 Major '+
Domestic Lenders

Our credit screening process has
been honed over many years and

takes into account all relevant cus-
tomer data. Building on a database
covering over seven million indi-
viduals, every one of our cus-
tomers is assigned to different risk
categories that determine the
interest rate and the credit limit
extended. Customers continue to
be monitored even after extension
of a credit line with the risk cate-

gory adjusted in light of account
usage and other factors. Large-lot
loans in excess of 500,000 yen,
accounting for approximately one
half of total loans outstanding, are
extended to only the very best of
our customers having very low
probabilities of default. In addi-
tion to these precautionary meas-
ures, we have always reacted pro-
actively to any sign of a loan turn-
ing bad. For example, customers
with a lower risk rating may be
contacted on the very day that
their loan goes into arrears. We
also offer extensive debt consult-
ing services for the benefit of both
and ACOM.
Experience shows that such proac-

the borrower

tive management can help to pin-
point and resolve credit problems
at an early stage. Conversely, it is
extremely difficult to recover loans
that have been in arrears for an
extended period of time, again
highlighting the importance of
immediate remedial action.

For all of the above reasons, our
own credit costs remain under
greater control than those of the
industry in general. This is not to
say that we are in any way compla-
cent about our position in this
respect. On the contrary, we
regard the recent rise in credit cost
as unacceptable, requiring strong
courntermeasures to be taken.

A second reason for our strong
performance last year at the net
income level was an approximately
5 percent improvement in the
effective tax rate stemming from
the fact that ACOM is no longer
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subject to certain taxes as a close-
ly-held corporation following a
share placing in July 2001. Net
income thus increased by 17%
compared with FY 2000 during a
year in which many of our com-
petitors struggled to match last
year’s level and several showed a
significant decline.

Consolidation among

Consumer Finance Lenders

As is well known, the consumer
finance market, as a whole, has
been stagnart in terms of total size
for some time. Major consumer
finance companies, including
ACOM, have grown by providing
superior service and access to their
nationwide networks. A reduction
two years ago in the maximum
legal lending rate reduced the
maximum rate chargeable on
loans to 29.2% from a level of
40.004% applying previously.
Together with the downturn in the
employment conditions, this has
served to render unlisted smaller
and 'medium-sized lenders
increasingly uncompetitive and
has triggered a consolidation with-
in the industry as some of the larg-
er lenders, including foreigners,
purchase companies and loan
books. We note that certain for-
eign companies have now grown
to a size where they rank among
the largest suppliers of consumer
finance in Japan. Moreover, these
companies have deep pockets and
expertise in credit management
gained in their home markets.
ACOM is carefully monitoring the
effect of these companies on the

competitive dynamics of the con-

sumer finance market.

Demographics

Looking forward, our industry
faces a number of challenges.
Foremost among these is the low
birth rate in Japan. In particular,
over the next the 4 years the num-
ber of individuals aged between 20
and 30 is set to shrink by 1.8 mil-

lion individuals. This segment of
the population includes around
50% of ACOM's first time bor-
rowers and is of strategic impor-
tance for the consumer finance
industry as a whole. In addition,
the continuing economic recession
and breakdown of the Japanese
lifetime employment system, the
rise of alternative forms of
employment and a generation of
so-called “freeters” outside of the
traditional Japanese employment
structure also pose challenges for
our industry, especially in the
management of credit risk. On the
positive side, Japanese attitudes to
credit are changing. No longer
does the majority of Japanese con-
sider debt shameful. The younger
generation in particular has
embraced prudent use of con-
sumer credit. The long-term out-
look for our industry therefore
would seem to encompass both
modest growth in the underlying
market and a secular increase in
credit risk.

Yerms of Competition

It is also likely that the terms of
competition between companies
will also change over the longer
term. Qur customers demand that
we compete on convenience and
service rather than on price alone.
As market share continues to grav-
itate to the top echelon of con-
sumer finance companies, compe-
tition will continue to increase in
each of these categories. In our
opinion, the winners will be those
companies that manage to offer an
increase in customer convenience
and service.
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I
ACOM'’s response to the chal-
lenges and opportunities described
above. As I have already noted, the

would now like to turn to

winners in our industry will be
those that manage to provide low-
cost, high value-added services to

customers. In this respect I would

like to make a number of observa-

tions.

+ We need to be continually aware

that each of our customers is an
individual with individual needs
and values. Some of our cus-
tomers are primarily interested
in price or the interest rate and
credit limit extended. Others are
interested in convenience, speed
of response or access to our
national network. Customers
will naturally gravitate to those
companies meeting their service
and preferences.
Consequently, the value propo-
sition we extend to our cus-
tomers must be appropriately
focused on individual needs.

pricing

We need to maintain strict con-
trol over credit quality. This atti-
tude explains why ACOM,
although in principle willing to
make acquisitions on the right
terms, has been less aggressive
than other companies in pursu-
ing growth through acquisition.
We have been more sensitive to
the credit risks involved than
others.

While the provision of unse-
cured consumer loans will con-
tinue to be the engine powering
our growth for the foreseeable

future, it is important to note
that the 10 trillion yen consumer
finance market is just one com-
ponent of the larger 53 trillion
yen consumer credit market.
ACOM has opportunities to
build on its core competency to
expand horizontally into this
larger market in such areas as
installment sales finance and the
The
Company also has opportunities
to partner with other financial

credit card business.

institutions for mutual benefit.
This phase of our development
is now largely in place following
the formation of relationships
with various regional banks and
others.

Finally, we need to always bear
in mind that a business such as
ours cannot succeed in the
absence of public trust. Unless
the public has confidence in
doing business with us, we are
doomed to failure. Indeed, the
abrupt fall from grace and bank-
ruptcy of the US energy giant
Enron and the subsequent prob-
lems being endured by its audi-
tors are clear warnings to all that
they ignore corporate gover-
nance and fair dealing at their
peril. Transparent compliance
with legal and social norms is a
necessity not a luxury.

Corporate Renewal

ACOM is currently in the midst of
a major corporate renewal that
started last year in FY 2001. In that
year, we made a full-scale entry

into the servicing business through
IR Loan Servicing, Inc. and
formed a nonbank joint venture

with the Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi
and others to form Tokyo-
Mitsubishi Cash One in order to
extend our reach to the whole con-
sumer credit industry. This year,
our energies will be devoted to two
primary tasks. The first is to con-
solidate our back office operations
to improve efficiency. The second
is to develop our cross-channel
marketing and customer relation-
ship management facilities to posi-
tion us at the forefront of our
industry in being able to provide
targeted services to clients inte-
grated across all channels of distri-
bution. In this way, we aim to be
able to increase the value-added of
our services at the same time as we
reduce our cost base. The systems
allowing us to do this are currently
under construction and are due to
come online during this fiscal year. -
At that time, we aim to be able to
draw together all of the strands of
our business development strategy
as we move to establish a position
of competitive advantage within
the industry.

As noted above, for several years
the major strategic thrust under-

taken has been to put in place a
number of partnerships with other
financial services companies
allowing ACOM to address oppor-
tunities in the wider consumer
credit market.

Tokyo-Mitsubishi Cash One

In August 2001, ACOM reached
agreement with the Bank of Tokyo
Mitsubishi, Ltd., the Mitsubishi




Trust and Banking Corporation,
DC CARD CO., LTD. and JACCS
CO., LTD. on the formation of a
joint venture company. This com-
pany started operation in March
2002 under the name “Tokyo-
Mitsubishi Cash One Ltd.”
Initially it will provide consumer
loans to individuals through chan-
nels that will be available on a 365
by 24 basis. Further out, it is
intended that this joint venture
expand its areas of operation into
new areas made available as dereg-
ulation and technological progress
make it possible to provide servic-
es crossing traditional sector
boundaries. ACOM has dis-
patched staff to the new company,
which will inherit ACOM’s strong
cost focus and ability to innovate.
Under these arrangements ACOM
achieves access to a new client
base, which might otherwise have
been resistant to doing business
directly with a consumer finance
company. Tokyo-Mitsubishi Cash
One is estimated to lose 9.5 billion
yen during the current financial
year, its first year of operation.
This will have a depressant effect
on our consolidated earnings since
this company is included as an
equity method affiliate. However,
we look for Tokyo-Mitsubishi
Cash One to breakeven in its third
year; and to eliminate accumulat-
ed losses by the end of its fifth year
of operation.

Guarantee Business

Tokyo-Mitsubishi Cash One is
structured to serve clients mainly
in the major urban centers.
Outside of these areas we have

formed relationships with regional
banks to provide their customers
with loan services. Starting with
Hokkaido Bank in May 2001, we
have now formed relationships
with a total of 4 regional banks.
These operations have started to
produce useful revenues. We will
make every effort during FY 2002
to increase the number of partners
to around 10. Should we succeed
in this, the guarantee business
should show a profit in FY 2003.

Servicing Business

It is now over one year since we
entered the debt servicing business
through an investment in IR Loan
Servicing, Inc. This company pur-
chases and services monetary
claims against individuals and cor-
porations from financial institu-
tions. It also services such claims
on consignment from other finan-
cial institutions and provides serv-
ices related to the securitization of
financial claims and real estate
loan credits. In March 2002 this
company received ratings of ABSS
Unsecured 3 (JPN) as a special ser-
vicer of unsecured credits and
CSS3+ (JPN) as a special servicer
of CMBS from the credit rating
agency Fitch Ratings.

Credit Card Business

We were first approved as a princi-
pal member of MasterCard
International in July 1998. Since
making an entry into the shopping
credit market in April 1999, the
number of ACOM credit cards in
issue has expanded to over one
million as we have exploited our
competitive advantage relative to

traditional credit card issuers.
Foremost among these advantages
is speed of response. We can, for
handle the whole
issuance process from initial appli-

example,

cation to card delivery in around
30 minutes compared with several
days for our major competitors. In
addition, our advanced infrastruc-
ture has allowed us to introduce a
number of innovations, which our
competitors are ill equipped to
match, such as flexible repayment

terms and issuance from our net-
work of MUJINKUN machines.

At the core of our strategy in this
area is the promotion of the cash-
ing features of these cards by cus-
tomers who may make heavy use
of shopping credit but have not yet
realized the convenience of the
loan facilities provided.

Last year we made a number of

moves to improve the efficiency of
our operations and allow us to
pursue low-cost operations and
high value-added services simulta-
neously.

Mationwide Network and Back Office
Consolidation

Our nationwide network now con-
sists of 521 staffed and 1,240
unstaffed branches together with a
network of 1,751 MUJINKUN
machines and access to 49,777
CDs and ATMs both proprietary
and through tie-ups with other
financial institutions. This net-
work is now sufficiently large and
universally available to fulfill most
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current and expected demands on
it. At present, however, each of the
staffed branches acts an integrated
service provider embracing both
front office activities, such as sales
and marketing and back office
activities, such as fielding tele-
phone inquiries from customers
and collection. During the last year
we have started to consolidate
back office operations in a limited
number of locations to improve
the efficiency of our resource allo-
cation. For example, we are cur-
rently consolidating various client
support services into four regional
contact centers. Ultimately, our
goal is that the branch offices will
concentrate solely on front office
operations, adding value to our
customer relationships, which
remains the primary focus of these
innovations. In this they will be
supported by the advanced CRM
(Customer Relationship
Management) systems and chan-
nel integration we are putting in
place and which I would like to
discuss below.

Over the last 10 years ACOM has
achieved a doubling in employee
productivity. We believe that over
the next 5 years, even assuming
that we dedicate more resources to
the provision of advanced services
to our customers, we should still
be able to achieve a further 50%
improvement in productivity.

Computer Center Butsourting

As a further measure directed to
improving efficiency, during FY
2000 we reached agreement with
IBM Japan to outsource our com-

puter center operations. This was
implemented in FY 2001 and
should allow us to save over 13 bil-
lion yen over the next 10 years as
well as freeing valuable systems
development staff for other proj-
ects.

ACOM interacts with its cus-
tomers using five distinct channels

- face to face at the branches, via
its own CDs and ATMs as well as
those of tie-up partners, through
its MUJINKUN automated loan
application machines, by tele-
phone and through the Internet.
Over the next year we will be inte-
grating all of these channels so that
customers can interact with us
seamlessly across multiple chan-
nels. For example, if a customer
first contacts us via mabile phone
and then visits a manned branch,
up to date information should be
available. This will mark a first for
any consumer finance company in
Japan and put us in a position to
benefit as customers increasingly
embrace virtual channels of distri-
bution including the Internet.

CRM Systems

One further innovation in cus-
tomer service we are intending to
introduce is to construct an
advanced CRM
Relationship Management) sys-

{Customer

tem, which will analyze customer
data stored in our systems with a
view to elucidating and categoriz-
ing customer preferences. As men-
tioned above, our customers are
multi-faceted in their demands.




Analyzing customer data in detail
will give us some insight into the
needs of our customers as a whole
and a way of analyzing individual
customer data to gain insight into
that customer’s personal prefer-
ence.

ACOM remains financially a very
conservative company. The two

major imperatives in our financial
policy are to lock in current low
interest rates through the capital
markets and to manage potential
liquidity risk.

Falling Cost of Funds ‘

The latter part of FY 2001 was dif-
ficult for us in our financing activ-
ities as bond market investors
stayed on the sidelines following
the multiple crises seen during
that year. However, this only
caused temporary problems in
financing with the result that we
were able once again to reduce our
average cost of funds. As of the
end of FY 2001, 27% of ACOM’s
borrowings were direct from the
capital markets. Over the medium
term we would like to increase this
proportion to 40%. However,
efforts to do so are currently
inhibited by the unstable state of
Japanese capital markets.

Diversifying Sources of Funds

Nevertheless, we are continuing to
make active efforts to insure that
we retain adequate access to fund-
ing even in the event of an emer-
gency or severe market disruption

in a number of ways. Firstly, we
continue to seek out new lenders,
as well as new classes of bond
investors by engaging in active
investor relations activities.
Secondly, we are expanding our
range of financing options
through, for example, the issuance
of ABS. Finally, at the end of FY
2001 we had established commit-
ment facilities valid for 4 years in
the amount of 181.4 billion yen.
This has since been raised to 307.7
billion yen. We believe the optimal
level for commitment lines would
be in the 300 billion to 400 billion
yen range that is roughly compara-
ble with our annual financing
needs.

For ACOM, ethics and compliance
are multi-faceted, comprising five

different areas together with the
systems required for their moni-
toring and management.

1. Compliance with law

2. Compliance with social ethics

3. Compliance with internal rules

4. Compliance with protection of
human rights

5. Social contribution

One issue that has come to the
fore during the past year with the
abrupt collapse of Enron (and
subsequently its auditor) is the
imperative for companies to main-
tain bonds of trust with their
major stakeholders including
clients, shareholders and creditors.
Indeed, those bonds are the funda-
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mental basis on which all business
rests. Break them and even the
strongest companies are on a one-
way trip to bankruptcy. We

already screen job applicants for.

personal integrity at the hiring
stage and have, for the past five
years, included ethical training in
our general training regime.
During FY 2001 we moved deci-
sively to build on these founda-
tions and make sure we remain in
compliance with legal and ethical
norms at all levels of our organiza-
tion.

Business Ethies Office

We have established a Business
Ethics Office with a brief to install
ACOM'’s sense of business ethics,
dubbed the “ACOM method,”
into all employees. This office
coordinates and reports to the
Business Ethics Committee whose
members are Managing Directors
and the Director with responsibili-
ty for Business Ethics within the
Company.

CompHanece Officers

From October we will station a
compliance officer at every one of
our manned branches and in each
department. Although these offi-
cers will report locally to the
branch manager or department
head, they will have a direct hot-
line to the Business Ethics Office.
We are still in the midst of finaliz-
ing responsibilities for these staff.
However duties will include mak-
ing regular checks on whether the
company is in compliance with
regulations and the law, educating

local employees on ethical issues,
as well as resolving inquiries local-
ly or referring problems up as nec-
essary. A booklet detailing
ACOM’'s Ethical Codes for
Business including a self-check
card has been printed and distrib-
uted to all employees.

Voiuntary Work
In addition to the above, ACOM
actively promotes voluntary work
in the community by giving leave
of absence, financial support and
in other ways.

Corporate Culture

At root, we believe that ethical
behavior is as much an issue of
corporate culture as of maintain-
ing oversight. We believe that
companies lacking a commitment
to fair and honest dealings with all
stakeholders and society in general
will ultimately fail. For this reason,
I would like to assure all of our
stakeholders that compliance is a
matter of central importance to
management and one that we will
continue to prioritize over the
coming years.

We believe that the consumer

finance industry has entered a new
phase. The last ten years have seen
major consumer finance compa-
nies grow apace in an essentially
flat market as the industry has
consolidated. The keys to future
prosperity, by contrast, will be the
degree to which consumer finance
companies can reach out to a

wider market and the provision of

low cost, high value-added servic-
es. In particular, we believe that
those companies, such as ACOM,
which manage to control credit
costs in a difficult environment
will operate at an advantage.

In the shorter term, the outlook
for FY 2002 is unclear. It seems
likely that the Japanese economy
will experience an anernic, cyclical
recovery although employment
conditions seem likely to remain
under pressure. Nevertheless, we
believe that the preparations made
over the last several years should
start to bear fruit, allowing ACOM
to produce another year of
increase in revenues and earnings.






AGOM

fonsofidated Income and Expenses s
(Millions of Yen)

March 2001 March 2002
Cormsolidated / Cansoltdated /
Uncorsolidated Unconsolidated
yor % ACOM yatio yoy __yoy% ACOM rato
Operating Income 375,674 93 366712 1.024 414,918 39,243 104 400,818 1.033
Operating Profit 160,310 102 158,507 1.011 171,248 10,938 6.8 168,961 1.014
Non-operating Income 1.746 28.8 1.670 - 2,027 280 16.1 2,126 -
Non-operating Expenses 1.245 -60.3 1115 - 1,440 194 156 407 -
Income Before Extraordinary Items 160,811 119 139,062 1.011 171,836 11,024 6.9  170.680 1.007
Income Before Income Taxes 154,847 9.6 152,915 - 166,880 12,032 7.8 163,767 -
Net Income 81,369 9.4 B80.757 1.008 95,637 14,267 175 94,777 1.009

{onsolidated Operating Income

(Millions of Yen)
March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002

_yoy% yoy % __yoy % Yoy % Yoy %
Operating Income - - - - 343644 - 375874 93 414918 10.4
Financial Business - - - - 335,515 - 368113 9.7 408,431 11.0
Loan Busingss - - - - 323306 - 348295 7.7 380,553 93
Credit Card Business - - - - 464 - 2,353 407.3 3,771 60.2
Installment Sales Finance Business - - - - 11,745 - 17.446 485 23,595 35.2
Guarantee Business - - - - - - - - 319 -
Loan Servicing Business - - - - - - - - 191 -
Others - - - - - - 17 - 0 -100.0
Other Business - - - - 8.127 - 7.561 -1.0 6,487 -H4.2
Rental Business - - - - 6,719 - 5,569 -17.1 3,853 -30.8
Others - - - - 1407 - 1,991 415 2,634 323

Consolidated Operating Income {Compositian Ratio}

(%)
March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
Operating Income - - 100.0 100.0 100.0
Loan Business - - 94,1 92.7 91.7
Credit Card Business - - 8.1 08 0.9
Installment Sales Finance Business - - 34 47 5.7
Guarantee Business - - - - 0.1
Loan Servicing Business - - - - 0.0
Rental Business - - 2.0 15 0.9

Others - - 0.4 0.5 0.7



Receivables Qutstanding by Segment

(Millions of Yen)
March 1998 March 1998 Mareh 2000 March 2001 March 2002

Joy % yoy % yov % vy % yov%
Receivables Cutstanding - - 1.478,703 - 1,720,616 16.4 1,888,413 98
Loans Business - - - - 1,347,757 - 1.497.045 111 1,618,660 8.1
ACOM CO., LTD. - - - - 1.347.757 - 1,496.237 11.0 1,616,837 8.1
JCK CREDIT CO..LTD. - - - - - - 808 - 327 -59.5
SIAM A&C CO., LTD. - - - - - - - 1,495 -
Credit Card Business - - - - 6,359 - 19735 2103 32,102 62.7
ACOM MasterCard - - - - 6,167 - 19,157 2106 31,388 63.8
JCK CREDIT CO.,LTD. - - - - - 405 - 624 541
Instaliment Sales Finance Business - - - - 124,586 - 203.834 63.6 237,502 16.5
ACOM CO., LTD. - - 121,933 150,581 235 161,247 7.1
JCK CREDIT CO., LTD. - - - - - 46,112 - 69996 425
SIAM A&C CO., LTD. - - 2.652 - 4,140 56.1 6,258 511
Loan Servicing Business - - - - - - - - 147 -

Note: Figures for SIAM A&C CO., LTD. are results as of December 31 settlement date.

Number of Customer Accounts by Segment

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002

yoy % yoy% yoy % yoy % yoy %

Loan Business - - - - 2,669.016 - 2,898,760 8.6 3.058,274 5.5
ACOM CO. LTD. - - - - 2,669.016 - 2,893,789 8.4 3,035,706 49
JCK CREDIT CO., LTD. - - - . 4,971 - 2,719  -453
SIAM A&C CO., LTD. - - - - - 19.849 -
Credit Card Business - - 404.941 - 781,590 93.0 1,016,544 30.1
ACOM MasterCard - - - - 380.396 - 752508 978 1,004,118 334
JCK CREDIT CO,, LTD. - - - - - - 3238 4952 529
Installment Sales Finance - - - 415,085 768,882 85.2 905,725 17.8
ACOM CO,, LTD. - - - - 358,400 446,217 245 486,532 9.0
JCKCREDIT CO., LTD. - - - - - - 212,068 - 246,786 16.4
SIAM A&C CO., LTD. - - - - 56,665 - 110,597 95.2 172407 559
Loan Servicing Business - - - - - - - - 1,468 -
Rental Business - - - 604,558 347918 -425 15978 -95.4

Notes:

1. Loan business: Number of customer accounts with outstanding (including non-interest bearing) balance,

2. ACOM MasterCard: Cardholders.

3. Installment sales finance business: Number of contracts with receivables outstanding.

4. Loan servicing business: Number of accounts for purchased Joans.
5. Rental business: Number of users during the fiscal year.




income and Expenses

(Millions of Yen)

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
yay % yoy % yoy % yoy % voy %
Operating Income 284.632 10.1 310,521 9.1 341,767 10.1 366,712 73 400,818 9.3
Loan Business 263,697 10.9 286,359 856 316,490 10.5 341,456 79 373,235 9.3
Operating Expenses 170,029 5.9 183,412 79 197,392 76 208.205 5.5 231,857 114
Financial Expenses 29,844  -110 28,777 -36 29,250 1.6 28.933 -1 28,622 1.1
Other Operating Expenses 139,611 10.7 153,105 9.7 167.894 9.7 179.190 6.7 203,235 134
Operating Profit 114,603 17.2 127,109 10.9 144,374 136 158,507 9.8 168,961 6.6
Non-operating Income 1517 -19.7 1324 -127 1.319 -0.4 1,670 268 2126 273
Non-operating Expenses 1,256 473 993 -2t0 2,958 1979 1115 -623 407 635
Loss on Revaluation of
Marketable Securities 847 11.2 330 -609 622 88.1 - - - -
Income Before Extraordinary Items 114,863 162 127,440 109 142,735 120 159.062 11.4 170,680 7.3
Extraordinary Income 11 -498 28 1538 656 - 1.561 1378 1 -999
Extraordinary Losses 9906 -143 4418 -554 3178 -28.1 7708 1426 6914 -10.3
Loss on Sales of Fixed Assets 7.607  -145 2027 734 2.085 29 3.854 84.8 5,579 4438
Loss on Revaluation of
Investments in Securities 992 22.2 549 -4486 106 -80.7 1.340 - 411 -69.3
Income Before Income Taxes 104,968 20.2 123,049 17.2 140,213 139 152.915 9.1 163,767 7.1
Income Taxes, Current 60.936 20.8 66.550 9.2 69,030 3.7 74,950 8.6 79,360 59
Enterprise Taxes 12,336 20.5 13.150 6.6 13.220 0.5 14,350 8.5 16,960 18.2
Income Taxes, Deferred - - - -2.854 - -2,791 -2.2 -10370 2714
Net Income 44,032 194 56,499 28.3 74,038 310 80.757 9.1 94,777 174




k2

Operating Income

{Millions of Yen)

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
yov % yoy % yoy % Yoy % yoy %
Operating Income 284,632 10.1 310,521 9.1 341,767 10.1 366,712 7.3 400,818 9.3
Loan Business 263.697 109 286,359 856 316.490 10.5 341,456 78 373.235 9.3
Unsecured Loans 256.662 11.2 278,684 8.6 308,205 10.6 333.349 82 365,091 9.5
Consumers 256,660 11.2 278,452 8.5 307.697 105 332.936 82 364,814 9.6
Commercials 1 - 232 - 508 1188 413 -18.7 277 -329
Secured Loans 7.035 1.2 7.675 91 8,284 7.9 8,106 -2.2 8,143 0.5
Credit Card Business 7 14.9 15 99.8 451 2323 4148 3,692 58.9
ACOM MasterCard - - - - 428 - 2298  436.1 3,676 5.9
Instaliment Sales Finance Business 5.929 21.0 8.364 41.1 11,136 33.1 14,287 28.3 16,278 13.9
Guarantee Business - - - - - - - - 319 -
Rental Business 8,538 -7 7507 -121 6335 -14.8 1391 -75.1
Audio-Visual Software 5198  -10.3 4247  -183 3.007 -292 1591 -471 - -
Hardware 3174 111 3,149 0.8 3,388 78 - - -
Other 166  -69.5 110 -33.6 - - - - - -
Sales 723 -363 1,755 1427 320 -817 103 677 - -
Others 5,735 6.0 6.519 13.7 6,972 7.0 6,950 -0.3 7.292 49
Other Financial Income 647 13.3 815 26.0 367 -549 4 .797 23 -69.1
Other Operating Income 5.088 5.2 5,704 12.1 6,505 15.8 6,875 4.1 7.268 57
Coliection of Bad Debts Deducted 4,720 6.0 5.265 116 6.134 16.5 6,508 6.1 6,938 6.6

Operating Income [Composition Ratis]

Operating Income
Loan Business
Credit Card Business
Installment Sales Finance Business
Guarantee Business
Rental Business
Sales
Others

(%)
March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
92.6 92.2 92.6 93.1 93.1
0.0 0.0 0.1 06 09
2.1 2.7 33 39 4.1
- - - - 0.1
30 2.4 1.9 0.5 -
03 0.6 0.1 0.0 -
2.0 2.1 20 1.9 1.8



Operating Expenses

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
yoy % yoy % yov % voy % Yoy %
Operating Expenses 170,029 5.9 183,412 7.9 197,392 76 208,205 5.5 231,857 114
Financial Expenses 29,844  -110 28,777 -36 29.250 16 28933 11 28,622 -1.1
Cost of Sales 572 -414 1,529 1671 247  -838 8t  -67.1 - -
Chher Operating Expenses 139,611 10.7 153,105 9.7 167,834 9.7 179,190 6.7 203,235 13.4
Personnel Costs 35.058 1.7 33.179 5.4 35,200 6.1 34,125 -3.1 35,782 49
Provision for Bad Debts 30033 307 39,755 324 47,451 19.4 51,654 8.8 69,984 35.5
Bad Debt Write-Offs 27433 295 32,355 17.9 37.461 158 44,392 185 54,251 22.2
Additional Allowance for Bad Debts 2600 444 7400 1846 10,000 35.1 7261 -274 15,7133 1167
Advertising and Promotional Expenses 14,419 -2.4 13,513 -6.3 15,693 16.1 20216 288 19,304 4.5
Administrative Expenses 13.991 24 14,857 6.2 15,770 6.1 15,242 -3.3 15,487 1.6
Expenses for Computer Operation
and Development 15,120 30.6 19,189 26.9 18,617 -3.0 20,070 78 23,336 16.3
Fees 6.411 9.1 8.782 370 9,515 83 9,761 2.6 11,241 15.2
Insurance Expenses 2,676 12.1 3.272 22.3 5.776 76.5 6.578 13.9 6.247 -5.0
Depreciation Expenses 4,865 L7 5112 5.1 4,741 -72 4211 -11.2 3,829 -91
Taxes and Other Public Charges 5,254 349 5633 7.2 5,737 1.8 6.568 14.5 6.851 4.3
Others 11,781 0.6 9.807 -16.8 9,380 -4.4 10,759 14.7 11,169 38

Operating Expenses [Ratio of Operating Expenses to Dperating Income)

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
Yoy pp. YO§ pp. yoypp. YOy pp. yoypp.
Operating Expenses 59.7 <24 59.1 -0.6 57.8 -1.3 56.8 -1.0 57.8 1.0
Financial Expenses 105 - -24 9.3 -1.2 B.6 -0.7 79 -0.7 71 -0.8
Cost of Sales 02 -0.2 0.5 0.3 0.1 -04 0.0 -0.1 - -
Other Operating Expenses 49.0 0.2 49.3 0.3 49.1 -0.2 489 -0.2 30.7 1.8
Personnel Costs 12.3 -1.0 10.7 -1.6 10.3 -04 9.3 -1.0 8.9 -0.4
Provision for Bad Debts 10.6 1.7 12.8 2.2 13.9 1.1 14.1 0.2 175 34
Bad Debt Write-Offs 9.7 15 10.4 0.7 11.0 0.6 12.1 1.1 13.6 1.5
Additional Allowance for Bad Debts 09 0.2 24 L5 29 05 20 -0.9 39 1.9
Advertising and Promotional Expenses 5.1 -0.6 43 08 46 03 5.5 0.8 18 -07
Administrative Expenses 4.9 -0.4 48 -0.1 4.6 -0.2 4.2 -0.4 39 -0.3
Expenses for Computer Operation
and Development 53 08 6.2 0.9 5.4 -08 5.5 0.1 5.8 0.3
Fees 23 00 2.8 0.5 2.8 0.0 2.7 -0.1 2.8 0.1
Insurance Expenses 0.9 0.0 1.1 0.2 1.7 0.6 1.8 0.1 1.6 -0.2
Depreciation Expenses 17 -0.2 1.6 -0.1 14 -0.2 L1 -0.3 [R!] -0.2
Taxes and Other Public Charges 18 03 1.8 0.0 1.7 -0.1 1.8 0.1 1.7 -0.1
Others 4.1 0.4 32 09 27 0.5 23 0.2 28 -0.1

Note: Ratio of operating expenses to operating income = Operating expenses/Operating income




Receivables Dutstanding =

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002

__yov% Yoy % yoy % voy % __Yyoy%

Receivables Outstanding 1,147,108 124 1,297,689 13.1 1,476,050 13.7 1,666,149 129 1,809,564 8.6
Loans Business 1,083,214 11.3 1,206,401 11.4 1,347,757 11.7 1,496,237 11.0 1,616,837 8.1
Unsecured Loans 1,015,368 11.7 1,133,197 11.6 1,273,899 124 1,428,196 12.1 1,548,894 85
Consumers 1,015,306 11.7 1,131,255 11.4 1,271,865 12.4 1,426,696 12.2 1,547,850 85
Commercials 82 - 1,841 - 2,034 48 1499  -263 1,043 304
Secured Loans 67,845 5.1 73,204 79 73857 0.9 68,041 -7.9 67,942 -0.1
Real Estate Card Loan 37,123 83 42,744 15.1 45,454 6.3 49.663 9.3 53,508 7.7
Credit Card Business 94 434 135 42.5 6,359 - 19,330 204.0 31,478 62.8
ACOM MasterCard - - - - 6,167 - 19,157 2106 31,388 63.8
Others 94 43.4 135 42.5 192 41.9 172 -10.1 90 -477
Installment Sales Finance Business 63,799 36.8 91,152 429 121,933 33.8 150.581 235 161,247 71
Average Balance of Unsecured Loans for 415 43 442 6.5 479 8.4 496 35 512 32
Consumers per Account (Thousands of yen) (513) (7.1) (541)  (5.9)

<Reference>

Guaranteed loans receivable - - - - - - - - 9,539 -

Note: The figures in brackets represent the amounts of loans exclusive of non-interest-bearing balance.

Number of Customer Account,

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002

oy % yoy % oy % _yoy% yoy %

Loan Business 2.458,691 7.0 2,572,127 4.6 2,669,016 338 2,893,789 84 3,035,706 4.9

(2.796.743)  (4.8) (2,873.888) (2.8)

Unsecured Loans 2.446,935 7.1 2,559.255 1.6 2,655.803 38 2,880,304 8.5 3,021,780 49

(2,783.290) (4.8) (2.860.021) (2.8)

Consumers 2,446,922 71 2.558.273 4.6 2,654,651 38 2,879,293 85 3.020,908 4.9

(2.782,279)  (4.8) (2,859.149) (2.8)

Commercials 13 - 982 - 1.152 173 1011 -122 872 -13.7

Secured Loans 11,756 41 12,872 9.5 13.213 2.6 13.485 2.1 13,926 33

Credit Card Business 5492 8340 22,132 303.0 404,941 - 778,352 92.2 1,011,592 30.0

ACOM MasterCard - - - - 380,396 - 752,509 97.8 1,004,118 334

Qthers 5492 834.0 22,132 303.0 24,545 10.9 25.843 53 74714 711

Installment Sales Finance 217420 308 286,327 317 358.400 252 448 217 245 486,532 9.0
Notes:

1. Loan business: Number of customer accounts with outstanding balance.

2. ACOM MasterCard: Cardholders.

3. Others: "ACOSIS. " a system for settling Internet shopping transaction and others.

4. Installment sales finance business: Number of contracts with receivables outstanding.

3. The figures in brackets represent the number of loan customer accounts exclusive of non-interest-hearing balance.



Number of Mew Loan fustomers &

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
yoy % yov yoy % yoy % yoy %
Number of New Loan Customers 476,775  -16.0 453,123 -5.0 427886 -5.6 443,100 36 443.538 0.1
Unsecured Loans 476.502  -16.0 452.770 -5.0 427,367 -5.6 442,110 34 442,184 0.0
Consumers 476,493 -16.0 452,747 -5.0 427.345 -56 442,092 35 442,165 0.0
Commercials g - 23 1558 22 -4.3 18 -18.2 19 5.6
Secured Loans 273 -2081 353 293 519 410 990 908 1,354 368

Number of Loan Business Qutiets

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
Yoy Yoy Yoy YOV Yoy
Number of Loan Business Qutlets 1.126 303 1,521 395 1,635 114 1,741 106 1,761 20
Staffed 516 -16 509 -7 512 3 521 9 521 0
Unstaffed 510 319 1,012 402 1,123 11 1.220 97 1.240 20

RUINKUN 2
March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
Yoy yoy yoy YOV Yoy
Number of MUJINKUN Outlets 1,106 324 1,507 401 1,623 116 1,733 110 1,749 16
Number of MUJINKUN Machines 1,108 323 1.509 401 1,625 116 1,735 110 1,751 16

Cash Dispensers and ATMs

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
Yoy yoy yay yay Yoy
Number of Cash Dispensers and ATMs 12,051  1.280 14,594 2543 18478  3.884 30819 12,341 49,777 18,958
Proprietary 1,421 337 1,824 403 1,944 120 2,053 109 2,068 15
QOpen 365 Days/Year 1.410 348 1.814 404 1,937 123 2,046 109 2059 13
Open 24 Hours/Day 1,102 347 1,507 405 1,633 126 1,755 122 1,773 18
Tie-up 10,630 943 12,770 2,140 16,534 3,764 28,766 12,232 47,708 18,943
Others - - - - - - 7611 7611 7.611 0

Note: "Others" indicates receipt of payment by convenience stores under an agency agreement.

Employees
March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002

Yoy Yoy Yoy Yoy Yoy
Number of Employees 4,287 -197 4258 -29 4314 36 4,321 7 4,366 45
Head Office 625 -90 664 39 658 -6 653 -5 670 17
Financial Service Business Division 3373 -40 3,468 95 3.552 34 3,668 115 3,696 28
Contact Center - - - - - - - - 335 335
Other Business Division 289 -67 126 -163 104 -22 - -104 - -

Note: With the spin-off of the hardware rental division in April 2000, there is currently no entity that corresponds to the "Other Business Division,”



.

Loan interest Rate

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002

YOy pp. ¥OY PP yoypp oy pop. SOYpp.
Average Loan Interest Rate

During the Fiscal Year 25.51 -0.61 25.08 -0.43 24.86 -0.22 24.08 -0.78 23.80 -0.28
Unsecured Loans 26.52 -0.77 26.02 -0.50 25.70 -032 2475 -0.85 2432 -0.43
Consumers 26.52 -0.77 26.02 -0.50 25.70 -0.32 24,76 -0.94 24.32 -0.44
Commercials 15.45 - 24.43 8.98 24.08 -0.35 22.88 -1.20 21.59 -1.29
Secured Loans 10.68 -0.15 10.88 0.20 11.20 032 11.33 013 12.13 0.80

Unsetured Loans Receivable Qutstanding for Consumers by Interest Rate

{Millions of Yen)

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002

Nurnberof  Receivables Numberof ~ Reccivables Numberof  Receivables Numberof  Receivables Numberof  Receivables

Effective Annual Interest Rate Accounts . Outstanding Accounts ___ Ouistanding Accounts  Ouistanding Accounts _ Outstanding Accounts __ Outstanding
Loans Recelvable Qutstanding 2.446,922 1,015,308 2,558,273 1,131,285 2,654,651 1,271,865 2,879,293 1,426,696 3.020.908 1547850
28.470% and Higher 742,372 258,914 480,296 173,548 318,704 119,221 222747 82,965 167,997 62,372
27.375% 933,802 325,964 1,279,140 454,270 1,459,659 536,453 1,541,140 554,181 1,665,353 597.408
25.000% - 26.500% 569,011 285,192 551,932 287,550 550,454 304,112 641,763 332,986 644,128 349,436
20.000% - 24.820% 144,819 108,842 177,486 159,279 223,033 204,425 330,606 282,329 376,548 332,221
18.250% - 15.000% 1,250 278 2,108 2,189 19,216 37612 37,623 71,366 49,736 93,180
15.000% - 18.000% 19.912 26,718 22,643 33176 33,481 57.751 52,370 90,123 58.501 98,799
Less than 15.000% 33,756 9,337 44,668 11.241 50,104 12.288 53.044 12,744 58,645 14,431

Unsecured Loans Receivable Qutstanding for Consumers by Interest Rate {Composition Ratio]

(%)
March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002

Number of Receivables Number of Receivables Number of Receivables Number of Receivables Number of Receivables

Effective Annuat Interest Rate Accounts_ Ouistanding Accounts __Outstanding Accounts O Accounts __ Outstanding Accounts O
Loans Receivable Outstanding 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 160.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
28.470% and Higher 303 25.5 188 15.3 120 9.4 7.7 58 56 4.0
21.375% 38.2 321 50.0 40.2 55.0 42.2 535 388 $5.1 38.6
25.000% - 26.500% 233 281 21.6 26.3 20.7 239 223 233 21.3 22.6
20.000% - 24.820% 5.9 107 69 141 84 16.1 11.4 19.9 125 215
18.250% - 19.000% 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.7 29 13 50 1.7 6.0
15.000% - 18.000% 08 217 0.9 2.9 13 4.5 1.9 6.3 19 6.4
Less than 15.000% 15 09 1.7 1.0 19 1.0 1.9 0.9 1.9 0.9



AT
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Unsecured Loans Receivable Qutstanding by Classified Receivables Dutstanding

(Mdlltons of Yen)
March 1998 March 1899 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002

Classified Receivable Qutstanding Number of Receivables Number of Receivables Number of Receivables Number of Receivables Numberof  Receivables

(Mousands of Yen) Accourts __ Outstanding Accounts  Quistanding  Accounts  Outstanding Accounts  Owistanding Accounts  Owtstanding
<100 304,341 21,141 295,297 20,481 288,843 20,133 372972 19,576 438,426 20,039
100< <300 583.947 132,248 583877 131,855 568,346 128,577 570,692 129,995 558,095 127,004
300< <500 1,229,782 560,099 1,282,495 586,541 1,327,624 609,559 1,385,383 637,882 1,396,722 643,286
500< <1,000 310,838 272,01 344,039 303,527 372173 329124 386,856 338,669 387,674 333173
1,000< 18,014 29,805 52,565 88,850 97,665 184,470 163,390 300,571 239,991 424.257

Total 2,446,922 1,015,306 2.558.273 1,131,255 2,654,651 1,271,865 2,879,293 1,426,696 3,020,908 1,547,850

Unsecured Loans Reseivabie Quistanding by (lassified Receivables Qutstanding [Composition Ratie}

(%)
March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
Classilled Recelvable Outstanding Number of  Receivables Numberof  Receivables Numberof  Receivables Numberof — Recelvables Numberof  Receivables
{Thousands of Yen) Accounts Quistanding Accounts_ Quistanding Accounts  Owtstanding Accounts  Owistanding Accounts  Qutstanding
<100 124 2.1 115 18 109 1.6 13.0 14 s 1.3
100< <300 23.9 13.0 228 1.7 214 101 193 9.1 18.5 8.2
300< <500 50.3 55.2 50.1 51.8 500 479 48.1 447 462 41.6
500< <1,000 127 268 135 26.8 140 259 134 237 128 2S5
1,000< 0.7 29 2.1 7.9 3.7 145 57 211 7.9 274
Total 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 1000 1000
Aliswance for Bad Debts »
{Millions of Yen)
March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
yoy % yoy % yoy % Yoy % yoy%
Allowance for Bad Debts 36,900 76 44,300 20.1 54,300 22.6 61,900 14.0 77,700 25.5
Ratio of Allowance for Bad Debts 3.25 - 346 - 373 - 3.78 - 4.36 -
Additional Allowance for Bad Debts 2.600 444 7400 184.6 10,000 35.1 7.600 -24.0 15,800 107.9

Note: Ratio of allowance for bad debts = Allowance for bad debts / (Loans receivable outstanding at the fiscal year-end plus Installment receivables)



Bad Debt Write-8ffs

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
Yoy % yoy % vay % voy % yoy %

Bad Debt Write-Cffs (Millions of Yen) 27,433 29.5 32,355 17.9 37,461 158 44,392 18.5 54,251 22.2

Loans Receivahle 27,044 296 31,778 17.5 36,739 156 42 847 16.6 51,003 19.0
Unsecured Loans 26,197 284 31,042 18.5 35,958 15.8 39.839 10.8 49,713 24.8
Secured Loans 846 49.3 736  -130 781 6.1 3.007 2849 1,296  -57.1

ACOM MasterCard - - - - 19 - 511 - 1,767 245.8

Installment Sales Finance 392 82.7 568 44.8 682 20.2 1,018 49.2 1,475 44.9

Average Bad Debt Write-Off Amounts

per Account for Unsecured Loans 293 35 298 1.7 324 8.7 319 -1.5 332 4.1

{Thousands of Yen)

[Ratio of Bad Debt Write-0ffs}

Loans Receivable (%) 250  (0.35) 283 (0.13) 272 (0.09) 286  (0.i4) 315 (0.29)
Unsecured Loans 258  (0.34) 274 (0.16) 2.82  (0.08) 2,79 (-0.03) 321 (0.42)
Secured Loans 124 (037 100 (-0.29) 104 °(0.04) 435 (331 184 (-251)

ACOM MasterCard - - - - 032 (032 267 (2.35) 5.63  (2.96)

Instaliment Sates Finance 062 (0.16) 0.62  (0.00) 057 (-0.0%) 0.68  (0.11) 091 (0.23)

Notes:

1. Ratio of bad debt write-ofls
Loan business = Bad debt write-off of loan business / (Receivables outstanding plus Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy or under reorganization)
ACOM MasterCard = Bad debt write-off of ACOM MasterCard / Card shopping receivables
Installment sales finance business = Bad debt write-off of instaliment sales finance / Installment receivables

2. Figures in brackets indicate year-on-year change in percentage points.



ACOM

Bad Debts 2
(Millions of Yen)
March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
% % % % %
Total Amount of Bad Debts - - - - 34.077 2.53 34,596 2.31 43,691 2.70
Loans to Borrowers in Bankruptcy
ar Under Rearganization - - - - 3776 028 3650 024 7204 045
Applications for Bankruptcy
in Progress - - - - 2440 0.8 2,549 017 3292 0.20
Applications for the Civil Rehabilitation
in Progress - - - - - - - - 1,659 0.10
Applications for the Civil Rehabilitation
have been Determined - - - - - - - - 131 0.01
Loans in Arrears - - - - 13,408 0.99 16,866 1.13 20,972 1.30
Loans Past Due for Three Months or More - - - - 498 0.04 518 0.03 497 0.03
Restructured Loans - - - - 16,394 1.22 13,561 0.91 15,016 0.93

Note: Percentage rates = Bad debts / (Receivables outstanding plus Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy or under reorganization)

Leans in Arrears for Less Than 3 Menths

{Miilions of Yen)

texcluding balance held by headquarters' collection department]

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
% % % % %
11 days £ < 3 months - - - - 9,504 0.70 10,703 0.71 13,605 0.84
31 days € < 3 months - - - - 5,798 0.43 6,269 0.42 7,468 0.46
11 days < < 31 days - - - - 3706 Q.27 4434 030 6,136 038

Note: Percentage rates = Bad debts / (Receivables outstanding plus Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy or under reorganization)

Category criteria concerning situations of bad debts are as folfows;

Leans to borrowers in bankruptcy or under reorganization Loans past due for three manths or more

Loans to borrowers declared bankrupt, to borrowers under rehabilitation. to borrowers Loans past due for three months or more that do not fall into the above two categories,
under reorganization, or other similar circumstances, which are part of loans exclusive of

accrued inferest that are past due for over [2! days and held by headgquarters' collectfon Restructured loans

department. Loans, other than those in the above three categories, in which favorable terms, such as the

reduction «f interest, have been granted with a view to promoting recovery of the loans.
Loans in arrears
Other delinquent loans exclusive of accrued interest
This category excludes foans on which interest is being waived in support of business

restructuring.



Funds Procurement

(Millicns of Yen)

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
CR. CR CR. CR yoy % CR.
Borrowings 1.080.286 1000 1,191,700 100.0 1,192,926 1000 1,283,167 1000 1,417,966 10.5  100.0
Indirect 981.586 909 1,059,300 889 976.926 81.9 971,367 757 1,035,186 66 730
City Banks 25,347 24 16,987 14 20,423 1.7 28.798 23 37,017 285 2.6
Regional Banks 70,670 6.6 61,618 5.2 49,427 4.1 47.576 3.7 56,634 19.0 49
Long-Term Credit Banks 102,762 9.5 110,762 9.3 75,810 64 67,638 5.3 85,608  26.6 6.0
Trust Banks 408.810 378 452,698 380 437,622 36.7 457,598 357 433,001 -5.4 30.5
Foreign Banks 65.560 6.1 65.000 5.5 49,000 4.1 17,000 13 46,000 170.6 33
Life Insurance Companies 233741 2186 2331717 21.2 256,893 215 270.883 21.1 268,215 -1.0 18.9
Non-Life Insurance Companies 56,476 5.2 64.224 54 61,845 52 55,711 43 51434 1.7 36
Others 18.220 1.7 34834 2.8 25,908 2.2 26.163 20 57,277 1189 4.1
Direct 98.700 9.1 132,400 111 216,000 18.1 311,800 24.3 382,780 22.8 21.0
Straight Bonds 32,000 29 99,900 8.4 160,000 134 245,000 19.1 295,000 204 20.8
Convertible Bonds - - - - 50.000 42 50.000 39 50,000 0.0 3.5
Commerciat Paper 66,700 6.2 27,500 2.3 1,000 0.1 12,000 09 10,000 -16.7 0.7
Securitization of Installment Sales
Finance Receivables - - 5,000 0.4 5,000 0.4 4,800 0.4 3900 -188 6.3
Others - - - - - - - - 23,880 - 1.7
Short-Term 260.542 241 142297 119 19,668 1.6 19,188 1.5 13,562 -293 1.0
Long-Term 819,744 759 1,049,403 88.1 1,173,258 98.4 1,263,980 98.5 1,404,403 111 99.0
Fixed 495,561 459 761,465 63.9 847,114 710 978.647 763 1,154,619 180 814
Interest Rate Swaps (Notional) 84,060 7.8 158,162 13.3 161,398 13.5 88,577 6.9 96,648 9.1 6.8
Interest Cap {Notional) - - 35.000 28 35.000 2.9 110,000 8.6 117,000 6.4 8.3
{interest Rate]
Average Interest Rate on
Funds Procured During the Year (%) 3.00 - 2.57 - 2.46 237 - 2.13 -
Average Nominal Interest Rate on
Funds Procured During the Year 255 - 2.39 - 2.25 - 217 - 1.88 - -
Floating Interest Rate 2.00 - 2.01 - 2.20 - 2.20 - 1.77 - -
Fixed Interest Rate 3.92 - 2.96 - 2.65 - 2.38 - 2.21 - -
Short-Term 1.45 1.48 - 1.35 1.21 - 1.07 -
Long-Term 3.50 - 2.82 - 258 - 2.43 2.19 - -
Direct 1.36 - 171 1.72 1.76 - 1.88
Indirect 3.10 - 2.63 - 2.58 - 2.52 - 2.21 -
Notes:

1. From the interim accounting period ended September 30, 2001, average interest rate on funds procured during the year include bond issue expenses,

2. Financial expenses pertaining to derivatives have been excluded from the calculation of average nominal interest rate on funds procured during the year.
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{redit Card Business [ACOM Masterlard

(Millions of Yen)

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002

Yoy % . voy % yoy % Yoy % Yoy %

Number of Cardholders - - - - 380,396 - 752,509 9782 1,004,118 334
Card Shopping Receivables - - - - 8,167 - 19,157 210.60 31,388 63.8
Revolving Receivables - - - - 4,025 - 16,123 300.60 27731 72.0
Operating Income - - - - 428 - 2.298 436.10 3,676 59.9
Number of Card Issuance Machines - - - - 354 - 773 - 1,200 -
MUJINKUN - - - - 354 - 582 - 894 -
Loan Business Outlets - - - - 0 - 191 - 306 -

Instaliment Sales Finance Business

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002

yoy % yoy % yov % yoy % yoy %
Number of Customer Accounts 217,420 308 286,327 317 358,400 252 446,217 245 486,532 9.0
Installment Receivables 63,799 36.8 91,152 42.9 121,933 338 150,581 235 161,247 71
Adjusted Receivables 53,080 358 75,272 41.8 100,300 33.2 124,046 23.7 133,409 7.3
Qperating Income 5.929 21.0 8,364 41.1 11,136 331 14,287 28.3 16,278 139
Composition Ratio to Total Operating Income 2.1 - 27 - 33 - 39 - 41 -
Ratio of Bad Debt Write-Offs 0.62 - 0.62 - .57 - 0.68 - 0.91 -
Number of Merchant Venders 4,381 - 4,668 - 5.007 - 5.337 - 5,784 -
Number of Employees 134 - 180 - 200 - 216 - 231 -

Notes:
1. Number of customer accounts: Contracts with receivables outstanding.
2. Composition ratio to total operating income = Operating income of installment sales finance / Total operating income

Buarantee Business

(Millions of Yen)

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
yov % yoy % yoy % yoy % Yoy %
Number of Accounts with Qutstanding Balance - - - - - - - - 32432 -
Loan Guarantee Receivables - - - - - - - - 9,539 -
Income from Guarantee Business - - - - - - - - 319 -
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Financial Ratios

(%)
March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
__yoypp. Yoy pp Yoy pp. Yoy pp. __Yoypp.
Dividend Pay-out Ratio 133 -0.6 1.7 -1.6 109 -0.8 11.8 09 12.3 0.5
Shareholders’ Equity Ratio 204 g1 214 10 252 38 268 16 217 6.9
Dividend on Equity 2.0 0.0 19 -0.1 19 0.0 1.9 0.0 2.0 0.1
Return on Equity (ROE) 16.1 0.6 17.8 1.7 19.2 1.4 174 -1.8 17.5 0.1
Operating Profit to Total Assets 85 0.3 8.4 0.1 87 0.3 89 02 8.5 -0.4
Income Before Extraordinary Items to
Total Assets 85 0.2 8.4 0.1 8.6 0.2 8.9 0.3 86 0.3
Return on Assets (ROA) 33 0.2 3.7 04 4.5 0.8 4.5 0.0 48 0.3
Operating Margin 40.3 2.4 40.9 0.6 42.2 13 43.2 1.0 422 -1.0
Income Before Extraordinary Items to
Qperating Income 40.4 2.1 4.0 0.6 41.8 08 434 1.6 42.6 -0.8
Net Income Margin 15.5 12 18.2 2.7 217 3.5 22.0 03 236 1.6
Current Ratio 239.1 -8.4 2945 554 368.5 74.0 3952 267 386.1 9.1
Fixed Assets Ratio 41.6 -84 36.8 -48 284 -84 26.1 -23 254 0.7
Interest Coverage {times) 48 0.9 54 0.6 5.9 0.5 6.5 0.6 6.9 04
<Reference>
Business Operating Cost Ratio 12.6 -0.7 12.6 0.0 12.2 -04 11.5 -0.7 10.7 -0.8

Note: Business operating cost ratio = Other operating expenses / (Average loans receivable outstanding during the fiscal year plus

Installment receivables excluding deferred income on installment sales finance)
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Adjusted Per Share Data

{Yen)
March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
Net Income 300.29 385.32 504.93 550.75 647.31
Dividends 40.00 45.00 55.00 65.00 80.00
Shareholders’ Equity 1,999.12 2.341.59 2.916.96 3.429.24 3,969.80

Note: Historical figures have been adjusted.

Adjusted Per Share Data [Ratio of inerease or Decrease from the Previous Fiscal Year]

(%)
March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
Net Income 194 28.3 31.0 9.1 17.5
Dividends 143 12.5 22.2 18.2 23.1
Shareholders Equity 15.3 17.1 24.6 176 158

Shares Issued

{Thousands)

March 1998 March 1999 March 2000 March 2001 March 2002
Average Number of Shares Issued 146,631 146,631 146,631 146,631 146,417
During the Year
Number of Shares Issued 146,631 146,631 © 146,631 146,631 146,283
at Year-end
Notes:

1. From the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002, the average number of treasury stocks during the year are excluded from the
average number of shares issued during the year.
2. Froin the fiscal year ended March 31. 2002, the number of treasury stocks at the year-end are excluded from the number of shares issued at year-end.
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Maragament's Discussion & Anaiysis

ACOM reported consolidated
results for the first time during the
year to March 2000. The year
under consideration is thus the
third year for which consolidated
results have been reported. As of
March 2002, there were 16 sub-
sidiaries (10 domestic and 6 over-
seas) subject to consclidation and
a further 3 affiliates (2 domestic
and 1 overseas) subject to the
equity method of accounting.
However, the parent company
continues to account for the vast
majority of the income, profits
and assets of the Company.
Consolidated operating income,
net income and total assets all dif-
fer from those of the parent com-
pany by less than 5%.
Consequently, the analysis pre-
sented in the main body of the text
below is applicable to the parent
company only. Comments on the
main subsidiaries and affiliates fol-
low.

JCK CREDIT CO., LTD., formerly
JUKI CREDIT, continues to grow
as part of the ACOM group. This
company, together with ACOM
Shinpan, forms the core of
ACOM's installment sales finance
business. JCK CREDIT raised the
balance of installment receivables
outstanding from 49.5 billion to
70.6 billion yen during FY 2001. In
addition, there was an improve-
ment in the quality of receivables
outstanding, although not yet
reaching the same level as ACOM
Shinpan.

Eaging'lhcqu

re Incoma Taxes:

IR Loan Servicing, Inc., ACOM’s
vehicle for entry in the servicing
business, earning commissions on
the collection of consignment and
purchased loans, made a modest
200 million yen in its first year of
operation. However, following the
opening of an Osaka office and
acquisition of a servicer rating, the
intention is that this operation
should grow swiftly to become a
major contributor to the Group
total.

SIAM A&C CO., LTD., 49%-
owned by ACOM, is active in the
hire purchase business in
Thailand. This company has
steadily expanded its business to
make a full-scale entry into the
loan business in July 2001. It made
a profit during FY 2000 and elimi-
nated cumulative losses during FY
2001.

CHAILEASE ACOM FINANCE
CO., LTD,, a 40%-owned equity-
method affiliate, is a joint venture
with Taiwan's largest leasing com-
pany, concentrating on install-
ment sales of motorcycles. This
company recorded a surplus and
eliminated cumulative losses in
only its second year of operation.

Tokyo-Mitsubishi Cash One Ltd.,
a 35%-owned equity-method affil-
iate, is a joint venture with the
Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi, Ltd.,
the Mitsubishi Trust and Banking
Corporation, DC CARD CO.,
LTD. and JACCS CO., LTD. It
provides consumer loans to cus-
tomers and started operations in
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March 2002 at the end of the peri-
od under consideration. This com-
pany is working hard to achieve an
expansion in its business scale.

During FY 2001, consolidated
operating income rose by 10.4% to
414.9 billion yen, operating profit
by 6.8% to 171.2 billion yen,
income before income taxes by
7.8% to 166.8 billion yen and net
income by 17.5% to 95.6 billion
yen.

The following comments are rele-
vant to ACOM CO., LTD., the

parent company.

Background

The Japanese economy remained
mired in recession during the first
part of the year. In spite of some
indications that the economy
might have hit bottom in the last
quarter of the period, there was a
sharp deterioration in employ-
ment prospects and rising personal
bankruptcies in the second half of
the year. Across the consumer
finance industry, this was reflected
in slowing revenue growth and a
surge in bad debts. The environ-
ment of uncertainty was not
helped by a series of large-scale
corporate failures after September,
including MYCAL CORPORA-
TION, TAISEI FIRE and MARINE
INSURANCE CO LTD., and Aoki
Construction in Japan. In addi-
tion, these failures together with
the spectacular bankruptcy of
Enron Corporation in the United
States caused debt market

investors to become extremely
cautious and risk averse. This had
negative consequences for the
Company in the latter part of the
year as the cost of bond issuance
rose.

Network Enhancement

While maintaining strict cost con-
trol in an adverse environment,
the Company continued to invest
in measures designed to streamline
and consolidate back office func-
tions. To this end, ACOM intends
to open 4 contact centers. During
the year under consideration one
was opened with the transfer of
335 staff from branch offices.
Total headcount nevertheless rose
by only 1%.

Reflecting the fact that the
Company’s nationwide branch
network is now adequate for its
intended purpose, there was only a
modest increase in this area with
20 unstaffed and no staffed outlets
being added to the previous totals
of 1,741 and 521 respectively. In
order to increase convenience to
its customers the Company did
add 18,958 cash dispensers and
ATMs, all but 15 of which were
obtained through tie-ups with
other financial institutions, to its
network. This brought the total
number of such terminals avail-
able to ACOM customers to
49,777

Leans Business

Against this background, the
Company attracted the same num-
ber of new loan customers, slightly
over 443,500, as during the previ-



ous year, taking the total number
of accounts above 3 million for the
first time. At the end of the year
the Company had 3,035,700
accounts, a rise of 4.9% compared
with the year earlier figure. Loan
receivables outstanding rose 8.1%
to 1,616.8 billion yen as the
Company promoted loans its to
most creditworthy customers.
Nearly one half of all loans out-
standing are now accounted for by
customers with outstanding bal-
ances over 500,000 vyen.
Consequently, operating income
in the loan business rose by 9.3%
to 373.2 billion yen, accounting
for the great majority, 93.1%, of
the total operating income of
400.8 billion yen recorded for the
year.

Credit €ard Business

The number of ACOM credit card
holders rose by 30% to 1,011,500.
This was outpaced by the growth
in receivables outstanding, which
rose 62.8% to reach 31.4 billion
yen. Operating income in this
credit card business rose 58.9% to
3.6 billion yen. Although account-
ing for only a small proportion of
operating income and receivables,
this balance is slated to continue to
grow briskly in the medium term.

Installment Sales Finance Business

Conversely, because of a slow-
down in demand from affiliated
stores on the heels of the poor
economy, growth in the install-
ment sales finance business, on a
parent-only basis, slowed consid-
erably from the double-digit levels
recorded in recent years. The
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number of customer accounts and
the level of installment receivables
outstanding rose by 9.0% to
486,500 and 7.1% to 161.2 billion
yen, respectively. Operating
income rose by 13.9% to 16.2 bil-
lion yen or 4.1% of total operating
income.

Guarantee Business

Although small in scale, with only
300 million yen in operating
income during FY 2001, the guar-
antee business is slated to become
a mainstay of the Company’s
operations in future years. During
FY 2001 ACOM partnered with
four regional banks to offer these
services. Current plans call for a
further increase to 10 partners in
the short term.

Trends in Profitabifity

For much of the last decade,
ACOM has been able to steadily
improve its margins as increases
recorded in operating expenses
have lagged increases in operating
income. The principal contribu-
tors to this steady improvement
have been a decline in financial
expenses as the Company's fund-
ing costs have benefited from a
general downtrend in interest rates
and move to direct financing, and
continuous productivity improve-
ments arising from increasing
automation of the network which
have led to a decrease in branch
operating costs as well as essential-
ly flat personnel costs in spite of
the brisk rise in revenues.

During FY 2001 these two trends
remained in evidence. Financial
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expenses actually declined by 1.1%
to 28.6 biltion yen in spite of a
10.5% increase in the debt burden
to 1,417.9 billion yen. During the
second half of the year, ACOM
experienced some disruption to its
bond market financing in the wake
of the dislocations applying to
fixed income markets globally
during the period. Nevertheless,
the average interest rate on funds
procured during the year fell again
to 2.13% from 2.37% applying
during the previous year.
Personnel costs rose a meager
4.9% after actually showing a
decline during the previous finan-
cial year.

Increase in Provisions for Bad Debt
Overall, however, operating
expenses rose 11.4% to 231.8 bil-
lion yen, outpacing the growth in
operating income of 9.3%. This
was due to a sharp 35.5% increase
in the level of provision for bad
debts, which reached 69.9 billion
yen. This was a reflection of a
sharp deterioration in employ-
ment conditions especially during
the second half of the year.

Operating Income

Reflecting all of the above, operat-
ing income rose by 6.6% to 168.9
billion yen. Income before income
taxes rose by 7.1% to 163.7 billion
yen.

In July 2001, 12 million shares in’

ACOM owned by the Kinoshita
family and other related interests
were placed with domestic and
international investors in an equi-
ty offering lead-managed by

Merrill Lynch Japan Securities Co.,
Ltd. This reduced the Kinoshita
family’s total holding in ACOM to
a point where certain taxes
imposed on closely-held corpora-
tions no longer applied.
Consequently, ACOM'’s total tax
burden for FY 2001 fell by approx-
imately 9 billion yen compared
with the amount that would other-
wise have been payable. Reflecting
this fact, net income rose by 17.4%

to 94.7 billion yen.

Borrowings rose from 1,283.1 bil-
lion yen to 1,417.9 billion yen or
by 10.5% during FY 2001 as the
Company expanded borrowing in
line with the increase in its busi-
ness scale. In spite of disruption to
capital markets in the second half
of the year, direct financing
increased by 22.8% to 382.7 billion
yen accounting for 27.0% of total
borrowings. As noted above, the
average interest rate on funds pro-
cured during the year was 2.13%, a
decline of 0.24 percentage points
compared with the previous year.

The Company recorded EPS of
647.31 yen compared with 550.75
yen the  previous  year.

Shareholders’ equity per share
increased from 3,429.24 yen to
3,969.80 yen. As a result, return on
equity (ROE) improved by 0.1
percentage points to 17.5%, return
on assets (ROA) improved by 0.3
percentage points to 4.8%, and the
shareholders’ equity ratio
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improved by 0.9 percentage points
to 27.7%. ACOM declared a divi-
dend of 80 yen for the year, an
increase of 15 yen over the previ-
ous year.

During FY 2001, ACOM wrote off
54.2 billion yen in bad debts, an
increase of 22.2% over the previ-

ous year. In addition, to provision
against an expected increase in
future bad debts, the Company
took an additional allowance for
bad debts of 15.8 billion yen, over
twice the level taken the previous
year. Consequently, the total
allowance for bad debts rose to
77.7 billion yen or approximately
4.36% of the total balance of loan
receivables and installment receiv-
ables at year-end. This was a sharp
increase from the level of 3.78%
recorded at the end of the year-
earlier period and leaves ACOM
adequately provisioned, even tak-
ing into account the adverse oper-
ating climate.

viislon far Bad Dety

Bad DebtWrite-Offs =
Additional Allowanice for Bad Deb

ot Maren 3120020

flow statements, rose only margin-
ally.

Net cash used in investing activi-
ties is usually a rather small num-
ber compared with cash flow from
operations and cash flow from
financing activities. However, dur-
ing the year, ACOM actively
invested in subsidiaries and affili-
ates causing a net cash outflow of
29,803 million yen from investing
activities compared with a cash
inflow of 813 million yen during
the previous year.

Net cash provided by financing
activities fell from 80.9 billion yen
to 69.3 billion yen. Although the
company raised 481.2 billion yen
in new long-term debt, repay-
ments of principal also rose
sharply to 392.4 billion yen from
335.2 billion yen, while repayment
of short-term loans, an increase in
treasury stock and in dividends
paid during the year all absorbed
cash.

Nevertheless, the decline in cash

pi}'ris’in A_rrear§ :
“Loans Past Due for 3 Months or More flow absorbed by operations com-

Restru @Jvéd Loans

Net cash used in operating activi-
ties fell from a level of 85.8 billion
yen seen in FY 2000 to only 26.1
billion in FY 2001. The major con-
tributors to this improvement
were greater cash inflows from
income before income taxes and
an increase in allowance for bad
debts coupled with a decline in the
rate of increase in loans receivable.
Income taxes paid during the year,
another major item in the cash

fortably offset the increase in cash
used in investing activities and the
reduced level of cash provided by
financing activities to leave cash
and cash equivalents at the end of
the year well ahead of the year-ear-
lier figure at 104.9 billion yen.

Current assets rose to 1,947.9 bil-
lion yen from 1,745.0 billion yen.

Principal contributors to this rise




£t
N

were the increase in the level of
loans receivable and notes and
accounts receivable, together with
a 50 billion yen item correspon-
ding to a deposit for redemption
of convertible bonds.

Property and equipment net of
accumulated depreciation fell
13.6% from 61.2 billion yen to
52.9 billion yen. The main con-
tributor to the decrease was the
sale of land held by ACOM to
ACOM ESTATE CO., LTD., caus-
ing the total held on the balance

sheet to fall from 20.3 billion yen
to 14.5 billion yen.

The level of debt due within one
year including the current portion
of long term debt dominates cur-
rent liabilities. A sharp rise in the
latter from 338.2 billion yen to
401.2 billion yen was behind a cor-
responding rise in current liabili-
ties, which finished the year at
504.4 billion yen compared with
4415 billion yen the year before,
mainly reflecting a 50 billion yen
CB maturing within one year.

Similarly, rising levels of long-
term debt caused total long-term
liabilities to climb by 8.5% to
1,010.0 billion yen from 931.8 bil-
lion yen.

Total shareholders’ equity rose
15.5% to 580.7 billion yen due to a
sharp increase in retained earn-
ings, which rose by 18.5% to 536.0
billion yen
Company's strong earnings.

reflecting the
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
ACOM CO.,LTD. and Subsidiaries

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 3)
March 31 2002 2001 2002
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 120,163 ¥ 104,627 $ 901,786
Time deposits and other bank deposits (Note 6) 1,263 83 9,478
Marketable securities (Note 5) 452 298 3,392
Loans receivable {Notes 4 and 6) 1,618,660 1,497,045 12,147,542
Notes and accounts receivable (Note 6) 270,084 224,022 2,026,896
Inventories 7,356 7,228 55,204
Deposit for redemption of convertible notes (Note 6) 50,000 — 375,234
Deferred tax assets (Note 8) 30,061 21,300 225,598
Other current assets 22,669 20,265 170,123
Allowance for bad debts (78,945) 63.071) (592,457)
Total current assets 2,041,766 1,811,801 15,322,821
Property and equipment:
Land 24,852 31,641 186,506
Buildings and structures 46,196 52,482 346,686
Equipment 34,243 31,877 256,983
105,292 116,002 790,183
Accumulated depreciation (40,024) (40,501) (300,367)
Property and equipment, net (Note 6) 65,268 75,500 489,816
Investments and other assets:
Investments in securities (Notes 5 and 6) 21,459 25,577 161,043
Investments in and advances to affiliates 6,440 343 48,330
Telephone rights and other intangible assets 1,459 1,839 10,949
Rental deposits 11,452 11,581 85,943
Prepaid pension expenses (Note 7) 3,671 4,164 27,549
Unamortized discounts on bonds 1,787 — 13,410
Deferred tax assets (Note 8) 2,410 1,555 18,086
Other 13,269 12,760 99,579
Allowance for bad debts (2,118) (1,289) (15,894)
Total investments and other assets 59,831 56,534 449,013
Total assets ¥2,166,865 ¥1,943,836 $16,261,651

See accompanying notes to consofidated financial statements.
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Consaficatad Finan

Thousands of

U.S. Doltars
Millions of Yen (Note 3)
March 31 2002 2001 2002
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans (Note 6) ¥ 29337 ¥ 26393 $ 220,165
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 6) 418,121 356,891 3,137,868
Notes and accounts payable 6,571 9,714 49,313
Accrued income taxes (Note 8) 43,061 40,613 323,159
Deferred income on installment sales 39,437 33,579 295,962
Allowance for loss on debt guarantees (Note 11) 12 — 90
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 8) 27 17 202
Other current liabilities 16,265 14,404 122,063
Total current liabilities 552,834 481,613 4,148,848
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt (Note 6) 1,022,907 950,283 7,676,600
Atlowance for employees' retirement benefits (Note 7) 3173 3,092 23,812
Allowance for directors' and statutory auditors’ retirement benefits 980 886 7,354
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 8) — 1,430 —
Other long-term liabilities 3,874 2,871 29,073
Total long-term liabilities 1,030,936 958,564 7,736,855
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries 357 322 2,679
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 11}
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, ¥50 par value per share:
Authorized: 533,200,000 shares
Issued: 146,630,880 shares at March 31, 2002 and 2001 17,282 17,282 129,696
Additional paid-in capital 25,772 25,772 193,410
Retained earnings (Notes 10 and 17) 543,276 458,669 4,077,118
Net unrealized gains on other securities 1,127 3,183 8,457
Foreign currency translation adjustments (920) (1,572) {6,904)
Less: Treasury stock, at cost (Note 13):
347,383 shares and 10 shares at March 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively (3,802) )] (28,532)
Total shareholders’ equity 582,737 503,335 4,373,260
Total liabilities and sharehalders' equity ¥2,166,865 ¥1943,836 $16,261,651




Consolidated Statements of Income

ACOM CO.,LTD. and Subsidiaries

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 3}
Year ended March 31 2002 2001 2000 2002
Operating income:
Interest on loans receivable ¥373,526 ¥ 341,539 ¥ 316,490 $2,803,196
Fees from credit card business 3,755 2,344 451 28,180
Fees from installment sales financing 23,044 17,188 11,602 172,938
Fees from credit guarantees 114 — — 855
Collection of purchased receivables 149 — — 1,118
Other financial income 24 77 367 180
Sales 6,481 7,541 8,013 48,637
Other operating income 7,823 6,983 6.719 58,709
Total operating income 414,918 375,674 343,644 3,113,831
Operating expenses:
Financial expenses 29,903 29,573 29,263 224,412
Cost of purchased receivables 52 — — 390
Cost of sales 3,850 4,188 2,592 28,893
General and administrative expenses (Notes 7 and 9) 137,815 129,182 118,766 1,034,258
Provision for bad debts 72,034 52,420 47,532 540,592
Provision for loss on debt guarantees 12 — — 90
Total operating expenses 243,669 215,363 198,155 1,828,660
Operating profit 171,248 160,310 145,488 1,285,163
Other income (expenses):
Other interest and dividend income 571 643 235 4,285
Other interest expenses (78) (92) (60) (>85)
Equity in loss of unconsolidated affiliates (920) (5) — (6,904)
Net loss on sale or disposal of fixed assets (3,863) (4,299) (2,797) (29,005)
Loss on revaluation of marketable securities — — (622) —
Loss on sale of investments in securities (74) (155) — (555)
Loss on revaluation of investments in securities (Note 5) (412) (1,340) (123) (3,091)
Loss on settlement of investments in a mutual insurance — (1,000) — —
company
Loss on settlement of a subsidiary — —- (171) —
Gain on termination of a leveraged lease contract — 299 634 —_
Net gain on change in accounting standard for employees'
retirement benefits (Note 7) — 1,247 — —
Other, net 410 (760) (1,353) 3,076
Total other expenses, net (4,368) (5.463) (4,259) (32,780)
Income before income taxes 166,880 154,847 141,229 1,252,382
Income taxes (Note 8):
Current 80,787 75,831 69,537 606,281
Deferred (9,562) (2,371) (2,558) (71,759)
Total income taxes 71,224 73,459 66,978 534,514
Minerity interests in earnings (loss) of consolidated subsidiaries 18 17 (101) 135
Net income ¥ 95,637 ¥ 81,369 ¥ 74,352 $ 717,726
Amounts per share (in yen and U.S. dollars):
Net income:
Basic ¥ 653.18 ¥ 55492 ¥ 50707 $ 4.90
Diluted 631.64 535.97 500.32 4.74
Cash dividends 80.00 65.00 55.00 0.60

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
ACOM CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries

Balance at March 31, 1999

Adjustment for the cumulative
effect on prior years of
recognizing deferred income taxes

Net income

Cash dividends

Bonuses to directors

Net decrease in treasury stock
Balance at March 31, 2000
Net income

Cash dividends

Bonuses to directors

Net unrealized gains on other
securities

Foreign currency
translation adjustments

Net increase in treasury stock
Balance at March 31, 2001
Net income

Cash dividends

Bonuses to directors

Net unrealized gains on other
securities

Foreign currency
translation adjustments

Net increase in treasury stock
Balance at March 31, 2002

Balance at March 31, 2001
Net income

Cash dividends

Bonuses to directors

Net unrealized gains on other
securities

Foreign currency translation
adjustments

Net increase in treasury stock

Balance at March 31, 2002

See accompanying notes to d financial

Thousands Millions of Yen
M e M e VRER N0 T
common ek Gl emne o ol ek
146,630 ¥ 17,282 ¥ 25772 ¥ 301,350 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ ()]
— s — 17,810 — — —
— —_ — 74,352 — — —
— — — (7.331) — — —
_ _ _ (1) _ _ —
— — — — — — 0
146,630 17,282 25,772 386,139 — — )
— — — 81,369 — — —
— — — (8,797) — — —
— _ — (41) — — —
— — —_ — 3,183 — —
_ — — — — (1,572) —
— ~ — — - - 0
146,630 17,282 25,772 458,669 3,183 (1,572) (0)
— — — 95,637 — — —
— — — (10,983) — — —
— — _ (an — — —
— — — — (2,056) — —
— — — — — 652 —
— — — — — — (3,802)
146,630 ¥ 17,282 ¥ 25,772 ¥ 543,276 ¥ 1,127 ¥ (920) ¥ (3,802)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 3)
Commen Additonal Retatned Ne;:ﬂl;eggmd cfxor;?x%:y Treasury
stock paid-in earnings other translation stock
capital securities adjustments
$129,696 $193,410 $3442,168 $23887 $(11,797) $ (0)
— — 717,726 — — —
— — (82,424) — — —
— — (352) — — —
— — —  (15,429) — —
— — — — 4,893 —
— — — — — (28,532)
$129,696 $193,410 $4,077,118 $ 8457 $ (6,904) $(28,532)




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
ACOM CQO., LTD. and Subsidiaries

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 3)
Year ended March 31 2002 2001 2000 2002
Operating activities:
Income before income taxes ¥ 166,880 ¥ 154,847 ¥ 141,229 $1,252,382
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization 6,867 6,794 6,664 51,534
Increase in allowance for bad debts 16,695 7351 10,015 125,290
Increase in allowance for loss on debt guarantees 12 — — 90
Increase in allowance for employees’ retirement benefits 81 2,853 2 607
Increase (decrease) in allowance for directors' and statutory
auditors' retirement benefits 93 (143) 94 697
Non-operating interest and dividend income (571) (643) (235) (4,285)
Non-operating interest expenses 78 92 60 585
Equity in loss of unconsolidated affiliates 920 5 — 6,904
Net loss on sale or disposal of fixed assets 3,865 4,299 2,797 29,005
Amortization of discounts on bonds 183 — — 1,373
Bond issuance expenses 639 568 1,781 4,795
Loss on revaluation of marketable securities — — 622 —
Loss on sale of investments in securities 74 155 — 355
Loss on revaluation of investments in securities 412 1,340 123 3,001
Loss on settlement of investments in a mutual insurance
company — 1,000 — —
Loss on settlement of a subsidiary — — 171 —
Gain on termination of a leveraged lease contract — (299) (634) —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in loans receivable (121,614) (148,241) (141,355) (912,675)
Increase in notes and accounts receivable (45,507) (48,412) (38,694) (341,515)
(Increase) decrease in inventories (127) (120) 195 (953)
(Increase) decrease in other current assets (2,680) (1.871) 5,030 (20,112)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid pension expenses 492 (4,164) —_ 3,692
(Decrease) increase in notes and accounts payable (3,169) (288) 1,685 (23,782)
Increase in deferred income on installment sales 5,784 6,557 6,040 43,407
Increase in other current liabilities 2,321 1,273 2,361 17,418
Bonuses paid to directors 47) (41) (41) (352)
Other, net (406) (248) 474 (3,046)
Subtotal 31,278 (17,336) (1,608) 234,731
Non-operating interest and dividends received 662 643 233 4,968
Non-operating interest paid (110$) (86) (50 (825)
Income taxes paid (78,384) (73,606) (68,106) (588,247)
Net cash used in operating activities ¥ (46,554) ¥ (90,386) ¥ (69,531) $ (349,373)

(Continued)




Sratemenis

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 3)
2002 2001 2000 2002

Investing activities:
Decrease in time deposits and marketable securities ¥ 1,366 ¥ 7495 ¥ 12,350 $§ 10251
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 7,187 36 20 53,936
Purchases of property and equipment (6,268) (5,941) (4,061) (47,039)
Proceeds from maturity or sale of investments in securities — 1,770 258 —
Increase in investments in securities (1,019) (1,996) (609) (7.647)
Additions to investments in affiliates (7,000) (214) — (52,532)
Proceeds from settlement of a subsidiary — — 47 —
Net proceeds from acquisition of consolidated subsidiaries

(Note 15) — 6.134 — —_
Proceeds from termination of a leveraged lease contract — 170 340 —
Proceeds from sale of AV rental business (Note 16) 350 595 — 2,626
Increase in other investments (208) 471 (843) (1,560)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (5,590) 7,580 7,503 (41,951)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt 527,467 484,952 416,303 3,958,476
Payments on principal of long-term debt (447,428) (388,363) (293.335) (3,357,808)
Increase (decrease) in short-term loans 2,389 (269) (121,588) 17,928
(Increase) decrease in treasury stock (3,801) )] 0 (28.,525)
Net proceeds from issuance of a subsidiary's stock — 298 — —
Cash dividends paid (10,986) (8,800) (7,332) (82,446)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 67,639 87,818 (5,952) 507,609
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 42 13 (50) 315
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 15,536 5,026 (68,030) 116,592
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 104,627 99,932 167,963 785,193
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents due to exclusion of an

affiliate from consolidation at end of the year — (332) — _
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ¥120,163 ¥ 104,627 ¥ 99,932 $ 901,786

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ACOM CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries

1. Basis of Presenting the Consolidated Financial Statements
The accounting records of ACOM CO., LTD. (the "Company") and its domestic subsidiaries are maintained in accordance with
the provisions set forth in the Commercial Code of Japan and in conformity with accounting principles and practices generally

accepted in Japan.

The accounts of overseas subsidiaries of the Company are based on the financial statements prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") and practices prevailing in the countries where the subsidiaries have been incorporated.
The accompanying financial statements have not been materially affected by the differences between the GAAP prevailing in these
countries and Japanese GAAP. Therefore, no adjustments have been reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial state-

ments to present the accounts of the subsidiaries in compliance with Japanese accounting principles and practices.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been compiled from the consolidated financial statements filed with
the Prime Minister of Japan (the "PM") in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan. Accordingly, the accompa-
nying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the consolidated financial position, results of operations and
cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than
Japan. Certain items presented in the original consolidated financial statements filed with the PM have been reclassified for the

convenience of readers outside Japan.

As permitted under the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan, amounts of less than one million yen have been omitted. As a
result, the totals shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements (both in yen and in U.S. dollars) do not necessarily

agree with the sums of the individual amounts.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Principles of consolidation

In accordance with Japanese consolidation accounting standards, the Company considers any entity in which the Company,
directly or indirectly, is able to contral operations, to be a subsidiary, even if it is less-than-majority owned. The Company had 16
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2002. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and

all of its subsidiaries (together, the "Companies”), which are listed on the following page:
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Jurisdiction of Percentage of
Name incorporation equity ownership Fiscal year end
JLA INCORPORATED Japan 100% March 31
ACOM RESEARCH INSTITUTE, INC. Japan 100% March 31
AJAST Ltd. Japan 100% March 31
ACOM ESTATE CO., LTD. Japan 100% March 31
ABS CO., LTD. Japan 100% March 31
AVRS CO., LTD. Japan 100% March 31
ACOM RENTAL CO,, LTD. Japan 100% March 3t
JCK CREDIT CO.,LTD.9 . Japan 100% March 31
A BPARTNERCQO., LTD. Japan 100% March 31
IR Loan Servicing, Inc. Japan 60% March 31
ACOM (US.A) INC. USA. 100% December 31¢
ACOM INTERNATIONAL, INC. USA. 100% December 31¢?
1990 K PARTNERSHIP¢™ USA. 100% December 310
ACOM PACIFIC, INC. USA. 100% December 317
SIAM A&C CO., LTD. Thailand 499 December 31
ACOM CAPITAL CO., LTD. Cayman Island 100% December 31

*  Formerly JUKI CREDIT CO., LTD., renamed on September 1, 2001.

**  Changed the fiscal year end from March 31 in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000. As a result, the accompanylng consolidated financlal for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000
include financial statements for the nine -month period ended December 31, 1939,

*** Dissolved as of December 31, 2001 and in the process of liquidation.

***= A substantially controlled company.

In accordance with Japanese consolidation accounting standards, the Company considers any entity over which the Company
does not have a control but an ability to exercise significant influence to be an affiliate. Investments in affiliates are accounted for

by the equity method of accounting. The Company had three affiliates as of March 31, 2002, which are listed below:

Jurisdiction of Percentage of
Name incorporation equity ownership Fiscal year end
ASCOT CO.,LTD.® Japan 38.25% March 31
Tokyo-Mitsubishi Cash One Led.™ Japan 35% March 31
CHAILEASE ACOM FINANCE CO., LTD. Taiwan 40% December 31

Formerly E*NetCard CO., LTD., renamed on August 1, 2001.
**  Due to an issuance of stock 1o a third party In March 2001, the percentage of equity ownership was changed from 51% to 38.25%. As a resuslt, this company has baen excluded from consolida-

tion effective March 31, 2001,
*** Established on August 9, 2001.

The difference between the cost of investment in a subsidiary or an affiliate and the equity in its net assets at the date of acquisi-

tion is charged to income as immaterial.

For the purpose of preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements, all significant intercompany transactions,
account balances and unrealized profits among the Companies have been eliminated. The amounts of the overseas subsidiaries or

affiliates have been included or accounted for on the basis of fiscal periods ended December 31.

(b) Cash equivalents
The Companies consider all highly liquid investments, including time deposits with banks, bond investment funds and mar-

ketable securities purchased under resale agreements, with a maturity of three months or less when purchased, to be cash equiva-

lents.
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(c) Foreign currency transiation
The accounts of the overseas subsidiaries are translated into yen at the year-end exchange rates, except for shareholders' equity,
which is translated at historical rates. Differences arising from the translations are stated as "Foreign currency translation adjust-

ments” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

From the year ended March 31, 2001, "Foreign currency translation adjustments" have been presented in the shareholders' equity
section in accordance with the revised "Accounting Standard for Foreign Currency Transactions” issued by the Business
Accounting Deliberation Council (the "BADC") on October 22, 1999. In prior years, such adjustments were stated in the assets

section.

(d) Foreign currency transactions

Effective April 1, 2000, in accordance with the revised "Accounting Standard for Foreign Currency Transactions" mentioned in (c)
above, all monetary assets and liabilities, regardless of short-term or long-term, denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into yen at the exchange rates prevailing as of the fiscal year end, and resulting gains and losses are included in income. In prior
years, assets and liabilities other than short-term monetary assets and liabilities were translated at historical rates. The effect of this

change on the accompanying consolidated financial statements was immaterial.

(e) Marketable securities and investments in securities

Effective April 1, 2000, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries adopted the "Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments”
issued by the BADC on January 22, 1998. Under this Standard, marketable securities and investments in securities are classified by
their holding objectives into trading, held-to-maturity and other securities. Trading securities are valued at market prices and the
resulting gains or losses are included in income. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortized cost. Other securities are val-
ued at market prices and the resulting gains or losses are stated, net of tax, in the shareholders' equity section in the accornpanying
consolidated balance sheets, except that any impairment loss is recorded and charged to income. In prior years, marketable securi-
ties and investments in securities for which market prices are available were valued at the lower of moving-average cost or market.

The effect of this change was to increase income before income taxes for the year ended March 31, 2001 by ¥68 million.

Furthermore, as a result of examination of the respective holding objectives at the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31,
2001, held-to-maturity and other securities with a maturity within one year, and those with the same characteristics as deposits,
were reclassified to "Marketable securities” in the current assets section; and securities falling outside these categories were reclas-
sified to "Investments in securities” in the investments and other assets section. This reclassification had the effect of reducing
marketable securities in current assets by ¥16,017 million and increasing investments in securities in non-current assets by the

same amount as of March 31, 2001.

Other securities for which market prices are not available are stated at moving-average cost.

(f) Inventories
Inventories, primarily consisting of paintings held by the Company and purchased receivables held by a subsidiary servicing com-

pany, are stated at individually specified cost.

(g) Allowance for bad debts

As a result of the adoption of the "Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” effective April 1, 2000, mentioned in (e) above,
to cover possible losses on collection of loans and other receivables, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries provided for an
allowance (i) with respect to ordinary debts, based on the historical rate of write-off, and (ii) with respect to other specific debts
whose recovery is doubtful, based on estimated write-off amounts, after considering the likelihood of recovery on an individual
basis. In prior years, the allowance for bad debts of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries was provided at the maximum

amount allowable for income tax purposes plus an estimated amount based on management's assessment of the loan portfolio.
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Loan balances are written off in cases where (i) the Company has confirmed the death or bankruptcy of the debtor or has volun-
tarily waived repayment of the loan, and (ji) the amounts due have not been collected for a certain period (even after follow-up

requests for payment) because of the inability on the part of the debtor or the guarantor to pay.

The allowance for bad debts of the overseas subsidiaries is provided at amounts determined by the estimates made by manage-

ment to cover possible losses on collection.

(h) Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation of property and equipment is computed principally by the declining-bal-
ance method, except for property and equipment of the overseas subsidiaries which is depreciated by the straight-line method,

over the estimated useful fives of the respective assets.

(i) Share and bond issuance expenses and discounts on bonds

Share and bond issuance expenses are charged to income when incurred.

From the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002, in accordance with the revised “Form of Standard Financial Statements in the
Consumer Finance Business" (issued by the Federation of Moneylenders Associations of Japan on April 25, 1993, revised on May
10, 2001), bond issuance expenses, related to the bonds issued by Financial Services companies only, were reclassified from
"Other, net” in the other income (expenses) section to "Financial expenses” in the operating expenses section. The effect of this
reclassification was to increase operating expenses by ¥629 million (34,720 thousand) and decreasing operating profit and other

expenses by the same amount for the year ended March 31, 2002.

Discounts on bonds are deferred and amortized by the straight-line method over the period of duration of the related bonds.

(i) Allowance for loss on debt guarantees
The Company has entered into affiliations with Japanese regional banks and an unconsolidated affiliate to provide credit guaran-
tees for personal loans held by those banks and the affiliate. To cover possible loss on debt guarantees, the Company provided for

an allowance based on the historical rates of fulfillment of guarantee obligation and subsequent write-off of the guaranteed loans.

(k) Pension plans
Effective April 1, 2000, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries adopted the "Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits"
issued by the BADC on June 16, 1998.

Under this Standard, allowance for employees' retirement benefits should be recognized at the net total of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, plus any actuarial gains (less any actuarial losses) not yet recognized, minus
any past service cost not yet recognized, minus the fair value at the balance sheet date of plan assets (if any) out of which the cbli-
gations are to be settled directly. If the amount determined above is negative (an asset), such asset should be recorded as prepaid

pension expenses.

Net retirement benefit expense or income should be recognized at the net total of current service cost and interest cost, minus the
expected return on any plan assets, minus any actuarial gains (less any actuarial losses) and past service cost recognized during the

year, plus any retirement benefits paid as a lump sum.

To determine the present value of a defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and, where applicable, past

service cost, the project unit credit method is used.

Actuarial gains or losses and past service cost should be recognized for each defined benefit plan over a period not exceeding the
expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in that plan. The Company and its domestic subsidiaries
have recognized actuarial gains or losses evenly over the five years following the respective fiscal years when such gains or losses
are identified. In addition, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries have recognized past service cost evenly over five years

from the time of its origination.




Any transition benefit liability or prepayment existing at the initial adoption of this Standard should be recognized over a period
not exceeding 15 years. The Company and its domestic subsidiaries recognized such transition liability and prepayment immedi-
ately in the year ended March 31, 2001, and the resulting net gain was stated as "Net gain on change in accounting standard for

employees’ retirement benefits” in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the year then ended.

. As a result of this change, prepaid pension expenses amounting to ¥4,164 million and allowance for employees' retirement bene-

fits amounting to ¥3,092 million were recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2001. This
change also had the effect of reducing retirement benefit expenses by ¥104 million, increasing operating profit by the same

amount, and increasing income before income taxes by ¥1,351 million for the year ended March 31, 2001.

(1} Allowance for directors’ and statutory auditors’ retirement benefits

The allowance for directors’ and statutory auditors' retirement benefits of the Company and certain of its domestic subsidiaries is
provided at the amount which would have been required to be paid if all directors and statutory auditors had voluntarily termi-
nated their services as of the balance sheet date. This amount has been determined in accordance with the internal rules of the

respective companies.

(m) Leases
Non-cancellable lease transactions of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries are accounted for as operating leases regardless
of whether such leases are classified as operating or finance leases, except that lease agreements which stipulate the transfer of

ownership of the leased assets to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

(n) Recognition of interest income and expense
Interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis. However, the Company computes accrued interest income on
loans receivable at the interest rate stipulated in the Interest Rate Restriction Law of Japan or the contract interest rate, whichever

is lower.

(0) Recognition of fees from installment sales financing
Fees from customers and participating stores have principally been prorated by the respective number of installments, and the

prorated amounts have been recognized as income when they became due (the "sum-of-the-months' digits method").

(p) Recognition of fees from credit guarantees

Fees from credit guarantees have been recognized on an acerual basis using the credit-balance method.

(q) Income taxes

Effective April 1, 1999, the Company and its subsidiaries adopted the liability method for tax-effect accounting in accordance with
an amendment to the "Regulations Concerning Terminoclogy, Forms and Methods of Preparation of Financial Statements, etc.”
The cumnulative effect of this change was reported in the accompanying consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity for the year

ended March 31, 2000 as "Adjustment for the cumulative effect on prior years of recognizing deferred income taxes."

(r) Derivative and hedging transactions

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have used interest rate swap agreements, interest rate options (interest rate caps in
long positions only) and currency swap agreements solely in order to hedge against risks of fluctuations in interest rates and cur-
rency exchange rates relating to its short-term and long-term loans in compliance with the internal rules of the respective compa-

nies.

Under the "Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments,” derivative transactions are valued at market prices, except for hedg-
ing transactions whose gains or losses are deferred and recorded in the balance sheet until the hedged transactions are settled.

Moreover, if interest rate swaps and currency swaps are specifically tied to the hedged loan transactions, unrealized gains or losses
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on those swaps are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements as such gains or losses are to be offset with those on the
hedged transactions. Similarly, if interest rate caps are specifically tied to the hedged loan transactions, fees paid for those caps are

stated at amortized costs regardless of their market prices.

(s) Net income per share
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock out-

standing during the year.

Dituted net income per share is based upon the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the

year, after consideration of the dilutive effect of the zero coupon convertible notes issued on August 2, 1999.

(t) Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior years' consolidated financial statements to conform to the current year's presen-

tation.

3. U.S. Dollar Amounts

The translation of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts has been made, solely for convenience, as a matter of arithmetical com-
putation only, at the rate of ¥133.25 = US $1.00, the exchange rate prevailing on March 29, 2002. The translation should not be
construed as a representation that the yen amounts have been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into U.S. dol-

lars at the above or any other rate.

4. Loans Receivable
Loans receivable as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 included unsecured loans to individual customers in the aggregate amount of
¥1,549,661 million ($11,629,726 thousand) and ¥1,427,380 million, respectively.

Bad debts included in unsecured loans to individual customers as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 were classified as follows:

Thousands of
. Millions of Yen US. Dollars

March 31 2002 2001 2002
Non-accrual loans due to bankruptcy or reorganization ¥ 7,204 ¥ 3,650 $ 54,063
Other non-accrual loans 21,751 16,897 163,234
Loans past due for three months or more 519 684 3,894
Restructured loans 15,041 13,587 112,878
¥44,516 ¥34819 $334,078

5. Marketable Securities and Investments in Securities

At March 31, 2001, information with respect to held-to-maturity securities for which market prices were available was summa-

rized as follows:

Millions of Yen

Balance sheet Market Unrealized
amount value Josses
Unrealized loss items:
Bonds:
Other ¥ 5 ¥ 5 ¥ 0)
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At March 31, 2002, the Companies had no held-to-maturity securities.

At March 31, 2002 and 2001, information with respect to other securities for which market prices were available was summarized

as follows:
Millions of Yen
2002 2001
March 31 Cost sheff fr:coeum glaJiT:al:ssegs) Cost shecB: l:r:f:mu gg::e(al:::seei)
Unrealized gain items:
Stock ¥ 5932 ¥10,347 ¥ 4,414 ¥ 7563 ¥ 13812 ¥ 6,248
Bonds:
National and municipal 80 85 5 79 84 4
Corporate 85 158 72 161 269 107
Other 10 10 0 10 10 0
Other 1,502 1,508 5 1,591 1,616 24
Total 7,611 12,109 4,497 9,406 15,792 6,386
Unrealized loss items:
Stock 8,943 6,652 (2,290) 8,089 7,308 (781)
Bonds:
Other 213 210 3) 258 230 (28)
Other 2,020 1,723 (296) 2,230 2,034 (195)
Total 11,177 8,586 (2,590) 10,578 9,573 (1,005
Total ¥18,788 ¥ 20,695 ¥ 1,906 ¥ 19,984 ¥ 25365 ¥ 5381
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2002
March 31 Cost sh:ffrﬁlim gﬁxeﬁgﬁ
Unrealized gain items: .
Stock $ 44,517 $ 77,651 $33,125
Bonds:
National and municipal 600 637 37
Corporate 637 1,185 540
Other 75 75 0
Other 11,272 11,317 37
Total 57,118 90,874 33,748
Unrealized loss items:
Stock 67,114 49,921 (17,185)
Bonds;
Other 1,598 1,575 (22)
Other 15,159 12,930 (2,221)
Total 83,879 64,435 (19.437)
Total $ 140,998 $155,309 $14,303

With respect to other securities for which market prices were available, impairment losses amounting to ¥363 million ($2,724
thousand) were recorded and included in "Loss on revaluation of investments in securities” of the accompanying consclidated

statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2002.
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An impairment loss has been recorded when (i) the market price of a marketable security fell below 50% of its acquisition cost (or
book value, if previously written-down) at the fiscal year end, and is deerned unlikely to recover to the level of the cost, or (ii) the
market price fell below 30% to 50% of the cost at the fiscal year end, and the rate of decline remained 30% or higher during the

past one year.

Information with respect to other securities sold in the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dallars
Year ended March 31 2002 2001 2002
Total sales amount ¥ 860 ¥ 246 $6,454
Total gain on sales 307 0 2,303
Total loss on sales 92 155 690

At March 31, 2002 and 2001, securities for which market prices were not available included principally the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dotlars
2002 2001 2002
Balance Balance Balance
March 31 sheet amount sheet amount sheetamount
Other securities:
Money management funds ¥ — ¥ 473 $8 —
Unlisted companies' stock, excluding over-the-counter stock 1,160 437 8,705

Other securities with maturity and held-to-maturity securities will fall due subsequent to March 31, 2002 and 2001 as follows:

Millions of Yen
2002 2001
March 31 One year One - five years Over five years One year One - five years Over five years
Bonds:
National and municipal ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 85 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ B4
Corporate 87 70 — 88 180 —
Other 265 10 - — 52 247 —
Other 99 1,668 503 156 1,695 621
Total ¥452 ¥1,749 ¥589 ¥ 298 ¥ 2,123 ¥ 706
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2002
March 31 One year One - five years Over five years
Bonds:
National and municipal $ — 58 — $ 637
Corporate 652 525 —
Other 1,988 75 —
Other 742 12,517 3,774
Total $3,392 $13,125 $4,420




6. Short-Term Loans, Long-Term Debt and Pledged Assets

The weighted-average interest rates of short-term loans as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 were 1.57% and 2.07%, respectively.

Long-term debt was summarized as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

March 31 2002 2001 2002
Unsecured loans of domestic Companies mainly from banks and other

financial institutions at interest rates ranging from 0.80077% to 3.8%

due through April 2007 ¥ 413,988 ¥317,714 $3,106,851
Unsecured loans of an overseas subsidiary at interest rates ranging from

5.35% to 7.738% due through September 2003 1,698 — 12,742
Loans with collateral of domestic Companies mainly from banks and

other financial institutions at interest rates ranging from 0.8% to 3.8%

due through March 2009 646,771 686,660 4,853,816
Unsecured bonds issued by the Company at interest rates ranging from

0.85% to 2.72% due through May 2010 295,000 245,000 2,213,883
Unsecured bonds issued by domestic subsidiaries at interest rates ranging

from 0.55% to 1.269% due March 2003 4,000 3,000 30,018
Japanese yen discounted bonds with collateral issued by an overseas

subsidiary due March 2008 25,671 — 192,652
Unsecured zero coupon convertible notes issued by the Company®” 50,000 50,000 375,234
Payables under trust agreements for certain installment sales receivables

due January 2003 3,900 4,800 29,268
Less: current portion (418,121) (356,891) (3,137,868)

¥1,022,907 ¥ 950,283 $7,676,600

* The unsecured zero coupon convertible notes fell due on March 31, 2002 without any conversion right exerclsed. As the due date and the following date were bank holidays at an overseas pay-
ment place, the actual redemption date was April 2, 2002. In advance of the due date, on March 28, 2002, the Company made a deposit with the paying agent amounting to ¥50,000 million
{$375,234 thousand), equivalent to the principal amount of the notes, which was stated in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2002 as “Deposit for redemption of con-
vertible notes.”

Assets pledged as collateral for substantially short-term and long-term loans from banks and other financial institutions were as

follows:
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Doltars
March 31 2002 2001 2002
Bank deposits ¥ 1,194 ¥ — $ 8,960
Loans receivable 688,230 681,878 5,164,953
Notes and accounts receivable 877 2,194 6,581
Property and equipment, net 8,295 8,704 62,251
Investments in securities — 2,798 —
¥ 698,597 ¥ 695,577 $5,242,754

At March 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had a commitment, at the lenders' request, to furnish at any time, collateral pledged
on ¥147,347 million (31,105,793 thousand) and ¥165,801 million of loans receivable of ¥688,230 million ($5,164,953 thousand)
and ¥681,878 million shown in the previous table, respectively. The pledged collateral which the lenders could require covered the

following:
Thousands of
Mullions of Yen U.S. Dollars
March 31 2002 2001 2002
Short-term loans ¥ 1,000 ¥ 2,000 $ 7,504
Current portion of long-term debt 43,582 51,137 327,069
Long-term debt 102,460 112,404 768,930
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The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt subsequent to March 31, 2002 were summarized as follows:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31 Miltions of Yen USS. Dollars

2003 ¥ 418121 $ 3,137,868
2004 324,164 2.432.750
2005 294,690 2,211,557
2006 192,374 1,443,707
2007 103,285 775,121
2008 and thereafter 108,392 813,448

¥1,441,029 $10,814,476

For efficient procurement of working capital, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries have entered into overdraft contracts
with five financial institutions and commitment line contracts with ten financial institutions, which provided the Companies with
overdralt and commitment facilities in the aggregate amount of ¥187,609 million ($1,407,947 thousand) as of March 31, 2002.
The unused facilities maintained by the Companies as of March 31, 2002 amounted to ¥159,304 million ($1,195,527 thousand).

7. Pension Plans
At March 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company and certain of its domestic subsidiaries had, jointly or severally, defined benefit plans,
including two funded non-contributory tax-qualified retirement pension plans and two funded contributory welfare pension

plans, which together cover substantially all full-time employees who meet certain eligibility requirements.

The funded status and amounts recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 and
the components of net retirement benefit expenses recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the
years then ended were summarized as follows:

Retirement benefit liabilities

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
March 31 2002 2001 2002
Projected benefit obligation ¥ (30,993) ¥ (26679) $ (232,592)
Plan assets at fair market value 24,800 24,053 186,116
Unfunded retirement benefit liabilities (6,193) (2,626) (46,476)
Unrecognized past service cost (gain)® (2,080) — (15,609)
Net unrecognized actuarial losses 8,772 3,698 65,831
Net retirement benefit liabilities recognized on the
consolidated balance sheets 497 1,071 3,729
Prepaid pension expenses 3,671 4,164 27,549
Allowance for employees' retirement benefits ¥ (3173) ¥ (3.092) $ (23,812)

* In connection with the revision ta the Welfare Penston Insurance Law of Japan, effective March 2002, one of the joint welface pension plans held by the Companies raised the age of commence-
ment of benefit payments from 60 to 65 years, which reduced the benefit obligation of the plan by ¥2,116 miltion (515,879 thousand).
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Net retirement benefit expenses

Thousands of

Miltions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Year ended March 31 2002 2001 2002
Current service cost ¥2,167 ¥ 2202 $16,262
Interest cost 800 722 6,003
Expected return on plan assets (721) (759) (5,410)
Past service cost (gain) recognized for the year (3% — (262)
Net actuarial losses recognized for the year 739 — 5,545
Net gain on change in accounting standard for employees' retirement benefits — (1,247) —
Retirement payments in a lump sum — 23 —
Net retirernent benefit expenses ¥2,950 ¥ 941 $22,138

The principal assumption used in determining retirement benefit obligations and other components for the Companies' plans are

shown below:

2002 2001
Discount rate 2.50% 3.00%
Rate of return on assets 3.00% 3.00%
Period of recognition of past service cost 3 years evenly -~
Period of recognition of actuarial gains or losses dyearsevenly 5 years evenly

In the year ended March 31, 2000, contributions made to the tax-qualified retirement pension fund amounted to ¥2,646 million

and were charged to income.

8. Income Taxes

The Companies are subject to a number of taxes based on income. Corporation, inhabitants' and enterprise taxes are charged to
the income tax account of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries. The aggregate statutory tax rate applicable to the domestic
Companies was approximately 40.9% for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

Reconciliation between the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate as a percentage of income before income taxes for the years

ended March 31, 2001 and 2000 was summarized as follows:

Year ended March 31 2001 2000

Statutory income tax rate 40.9% 40.9%
Taxation on undistributed income 50 5.1
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes 0.1 0.1
Inhabitants' per capita taxes 0.2 0.2
Other 1.2 1.1

Effective income tax rate 47.4% 47.4%

Reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2002 was omitted as the statutory tax rate did not significantly differ from the effec-

tive tax rate.
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The tax effects of temporary differences which give rise to a significant portion of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March
31, 2002 and 2001 were presented as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
March 31 2002 2001 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Bad debt write-offs ¥ 9,105 ¥ 5909 $ 68,330
Provision for bad debts 12,145 8,736 91,144
Accrued bonuses 1,009 861 7,572
Allowance for employees' retirement benefits 1,259 1,249 9,448
Allowance for directors' and statutory auditors' retirement benefits 400 362 3,001
Accrued interest income 1,978 1,247 14,844
Accrued enterprise tax 4,059 3.080 30,461
Depreciation and amortization 5,331 3.970 40,007
Consumption tax 244 177 1,831
Revaluation of marketable securities Y243 91 1,823
Loss on investments in golf club and other membership 184 152 1,380
Tax loss carryforwards of subsidiaries 89 50 667
Elimination of unrealized profit 1,439 1,503 10,799
Other 202 317 1,515
Subtotal 37,693 27710 282,874
Less: valuation allowance {186) — (1,395)
Total gross deferred tax assets 37,506 27,710 281,470
Deferred tax liabilities:
Retained earnings of subsidiaries (2,727) (2,344) (20,465)
Prepaid pension expenses (1,500) (1,701) (11,257)
Net unrealized gains on other securities (779) (2.210) (5,846)
Other (53) (46) (397)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (5,061) (6,302) (37,981)
Net deferred tax assets ¥32,444 ¥ 21,408 $243,482
9. Leases

The following pro forma amounts represent the acquisition costs, accumulated depreciation and net book value of leased equip-
ment as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 and the related depreciation and interest expenses for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000, which would have been reflected in the consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income if

finance lease accounting had been applied to the finance lease transactions accounted for as operating leases:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Accumulated Acquisition  Accumulated Net book
Acquisition costs depreciation Net book value costs depreciation vahie
March 31 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2002 2002
Equipment ¥12,870 ¥16,405 ¥7,642 ¥9850  ¥5228 ¥6,555 $96,585 $57,350 $39,234
Thousands
of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Year ended March 31 2002 2001 2000 2002
Depreciation ¥3,681 ¥ 4347 ¥ 5137 $ 27,624

Interest 190 253 352 1,425



Lease expenses relating to finance lease transactions accounted for as operating leases amounted to ¥3,924 million ($29,448 thou-
sand), ¥4,649 million and ¥5,502 million for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments subsequent to March 31, 2002 for finance lease transactions accounted for as operating leases

were surmmmarized as follows:

Year ending March 31 Miltions of Yen TSZIBSZS;:
2003 ¥ 2.607 $ 19,564
2004 and thereafter 2,740 20,562

¥ 5,347 $ 40,127

10. Legal Reserve

Consolidated retained earnings included a legal reserve which amounted to ¥4,353 million ($32,667 thousand) and ¥4,352 million
as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The legal reserve has been provided in accordance with the Commercial Code of
Japan which requires that an amount equal to at least 10% of cash dividends and directors’ and statutory auditors’ bonuses in
respect of each fiscal period be appropriated to the legal reserve until the sum of such reserve and capital reserve, including addi-
tional paid-in capital, equals 25% of stated capital. This reserve is not available for dividends but may be used to reduce or elimi-

nate a deficit or may be transferred to stated capital by resolution of the shareholders.

11. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Future payments under rental leases subsequent to March 31, 2002 amounted to ¥5,733 million {$43,024 thousand).

The Company makes loans to customers primarily in the form of revolving credit-line contracts whereby a maximum credit
amount is assigned to a customer who is then able to borrow repeatedly within the limit of the facility. At March 31, 2002, the
unexercised portion of such facilities amounted to ¥526,860 million ($3,953,921 thousand), including ¥274,233 million
($2,058,033 thousand) for customers with zero outstanding balances. As a certain portion of revolving credit-line contracts lapse

without ever being used, the unexercised facilities will not necessarily affect the future cash flow of the Company.

At March 31, 2002, contingent liabilities on the personal loans for which the Company provided credit guarantees amounted to
¥9,526 miliion ($71,489 thousand), net of allowance for loss on debt guarantees in the amount of ¥12 million ($90 thousand). In
addition, at March 31, 2002, the Company was contingently liable as guarantor of an unconsolidated affiliate's debt amounting to
NT$100 million.

Refer to Note 6 regarding pledged assets.

12. Derivative and Hedging Activities

(1) Outline of transactions and conditions

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have used interest rate swap agreements, interest rate options and currency swap
agreements in order to hedge against the risk of fluctuations in interest rates and currency exchange rates relating to their short-

term and long-term loans.

No market risk is anticipated as such derivatives have been entered into in order to offset or mitigate gains or losses resulting from
the hedged loan transactions, even though interest rate swap agreements and currency swap agreements are exposed to changes in
interest rates and currency exchange rates, respectively. In addition, the Comnpanies are not exposed to risk on interest rate caps,
as the Companies hold only long positions in interest rate caps and the maximum cost of funding the combination of loans and

interest rate caps is capped at the cap rates.
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The Companies do not anticipate non-performance by any of the counterparties to the above transactions, all of whom are finan-

cial institutions which are deemed highly creditworthy.

The Companies have established rules for the authorization of derivative transactions and related risk management rules which

stipulate the limits on derivative transactions. All derivative transactions have been entered into in compliance with these rules.

Risk management for derivative transactions has been under the control of the Finance Department of the Company which estab-
lishes the position limit for each derivative transaction and monitors the limits. The position limit permissible for each derivative

transaction is authorized at the executive managing directors' meeting when the Company's annual business plan is established.

(2) Market value information
Market value information as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 was omitted as all of the Companies' derivative transactions are

accounted for as hedging transactions.

13. Stock Option Plan

The Company has a stock option plan for the granting of non-transferable options to certain eligible directors and key employees
of the Company. Options are granted for terms of five years to purchase the aggregate of 346,800 shares of common stock of the
Company at ¥10,682 ($80.16), equivalent to 103% of the higher of the closing price of the shares on the day prior to August 1,
2001 (the date of grant) or the monthly average closing price for July, 2001 (the month prior to the date of grant). The options are
exercisable beginning on July 1, 2003.

To provide for exercise of the options, in August 2001, the Company purchased 346,800 shares of common stock in the aggregate
amount of ¥3,796 million ($28,487 thousand) from the stack market, which were included in "Treasury stock” of the sharehold-

ers’ equity section of the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2002,

<
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14. Segment Information

The Companies’ operations by business segment were as follows:

Year ended March 31, 2002

Operating income from:
QOutside customers
Intersegment

Total

Operating expenses

Operating profit

Assets
Depreciation

Capital expenditure

Year ended March 31, 2001

Operating income from:
Outside customers
Intersegment

Total

Operating expenses

Operating profit

Assets
Depreciation

Capital expenditure

Year ended March 31, 2000

Operating income from:
Outside customers
Intersegment

Total

Operating expenses

Operating profit

Assets
Depreciation

Capital expenditure

Milltons of Yen

Adjustments
Financial Other and

services businesses Total eliminations Consolidated
¥ 408,431 ¥ 6,487 ¥ 414918 ¥y — ¥ 414918
— 14,671 14,671 (14,671) —
408,431 21,158 429,589 (14,671) 414,918
230,284 19,876 250,160 (6,491) 243,669
¥ 178146 ¥ 1282 ¥ 179,429 ¥ (8.180) ¥ 171,248
¥2,095,238 ¥ 39,292 ¥2,134,531 ¥32,334 ¥2,166,865
5771 704 6,476 53 6,529
6,109 2,730 8.839 (2,588) 6,251

¥ 368,113 ¥ 7561 ¥ 375,674 ¥ — ¥ 375674
— 17,192 17,192 (17,192) —

368,113 24,753 392,866 (17,192) 375,674
200,346 22,587 222,933 (7,569) 215,363

¥ 167,766 ¥ 2,165 ¥ 169,932 ¥ (9,622) ¥ 160,310
¥1.877,544 ¥ 38,061 ¥1915,606 ¥28,229 ¥1,943,836
5632 673 6,305 98 6,404
5629 1,377 7,007 (1,394) 5612

¥ 335517 ¥ 8,127 ¥ 343,644 ¥ — ¥ 343,644
— 16.377 16,377 (16,377) —

335517 24,504 360,021 (16,377) 343,644
183,304 22,344 205,648 (7.492) 198,155

¥ 152213 ¥ 2,160 ¥ 154373 ¥ (8,884) ¥ 145488
¥ 1,636,967 ¥ 37,437 ¥1,674,405 ¥33625 ¥1,708,030
5,562 555 6,117 153 6,271
4,178 1,759 5938 (1,491) 4,446
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Thousands of U.S, Dollars

Adjustments

Year ended March 31, 2002 F:::E? blgl‘r)l-\:srses Total eum?::uons Consolidated
Operating income from:

Qutside customers $ 3,065,148 $ 48,682 $ 3,113,831 $ — $ 3,113,831

Intersegment — 110,101 110,101 (110,101) —
Total 3,065,148 158,784 3,223,932 (110,101) 3,113,831
Operating expenses 1,728,210 149,163 1,877,373 (48,712) 1,828,660
Operating profit $ 1,336,930 § 9621 $ 1,346,559 $ (61,388) $ 1,285,163
Assets . $15,724,112 $294,874 $16,018,994 $242,656 $16,261,651
Depreciation 43,309 5,283 48,600 397 48,998
Capital expenditure 45,846 20,487 66,333 (19,422) 46,911

Unallocated corporate expenses and assets included in "Adjustments and eliminations” for the years ended or as of March 31,

2002, 2001 and 2000 were as follows;

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Year ended or as of March 31 2002 2001 2000 2002
Corporate expenses ¥ 8280 ¥ 8,103 ¥ 7,068 $ 62,138
Corporate assets 33,730 48,622 53,555 403,377

As described in Notes 2(c) and 2(d), the "Accounting Standard for Foreign Currency Transactions” was revised. As a result of this
change, unallocated corporate assets as of March 31, 2001 decreased by ¥1,572 miltion. Except for this, the effect of this change

was immaterial.

As described in Note 2(e), effective April 1, 2000, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries adopted the "Accounting Standard
for Financial Instruments” and reclassified certain of "Marketable securities” in the current assets section to "Investments in secu-
rities" in the non-current assets section, Concurrent with this reclassification, a portion of other financial income was reclassified
to other non-operating income, resulting in a reduction in operating income of the "Financial services" segment for the year
ended March 31, 2001 by ¥145 million. As described in Note 2(k), effective April 1, 2000, the Company and its domestic sub-
sidiaries adopted the "Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits." This change had the effect of reducing operating expenses of
the "Financial service" segment for the year ended March 31, 2001 by ¥90 million and unallocated corporate expenses for the year
then ended by ¥14 million. The effect on the "Other businesses” segment was immaterial. In addition, as a result of this change,
assets of the "Financial services" segment, those of the "Other businesses” segment and unallocated corporate assets as of March

31, 2001 increased by ¥3,488 million, ¥96 million and ¥579 million, respectively.

Geographical segment information and overseas sales have been omitted, as such sales were immaterial.

15. Acquisition of Subsidiaries

In the year ended March 31, 2001, the Company acquired 100% of the equity of JUKI CREDIT CO., LTD. (currently JCK CRED-
IT CO., LTD., renamed on September 1, 2001) and 60% of the equity of IR Loan Servicing, Inc., both of which have been includ-
ed in the accompanying consolidated financial statements from the respective effective acquisition dates. The fair value of the

assets and liabilities of these companies were as shown on the following page:
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JUKI CREDIT CO., LTD. (as of October 1, 2000)

Millions of Yen
Current assets ¥ 50,777
Non-current assets 563
Current liabilities (33,295)
Long-term liabilities (17,345)
Consolidation adjustments ' )
Acquisition cost paid —'~71~O~0—-—-
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (6,640
Net proceeds from acquisition ¥ 5940

IR Loan Servicing, Inc. (as of March 31, 2001)

Millions of Yen

Current assets ¥ 493
Non-current assets 2
Consolidation adjustments 2
Current liabilities (0)
Minority interest _ (198)

Acquisition cost paid 300
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (493)

Net proceeds from acquisition ¥ 193

16. Sale of AV Rental Business
From December 2000 to February 2001, the Company sold its Audio-Visual Software Rental ("AV Rental") business for cash con-
sideration of ¥1,052 million, resulting in a gain on sale of ¥39 million. The aggregate book value of the assets sold was ¥305 mil-

lion.

17. Subsequent Events .
On April 4, 2002, the Company issued ¥10,000 miflion of 1.61% unsecured bonds due April 4, 2006 based on the approval by the

Board of Directors on February 18, 2002. The net proceeds from the sale of the bonds will be utilized for funding loans receivable.

The Company issued ¥10,000 million of 1.73% unsecured bonds due June 6, 2008 and ¥10,000 miilion of 2.70% unsecured bonds
due June 26, 2012, on June 6, 2002 and June 26, 2002, respectively, based on the approval by the Board of Directors on May 15,

2002. The net proceeds from the sale of the bonds will be utilized for funding loans receivable.

The following appropriations of retained earnings, which have not been reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial

staternents for the year ended March 31, 2002, were approved at a shareholders' meeting held on June 27, 2002:

Millions of Yen
Cash dividends {¥40.00 = US$0.30) ¥ 5851

Bonuses to directors 38
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The Board of Directors and Sharcholders
ACOM CO,, LTD.

We have audited the congolidated babance sheets of ACOM CO., LTD. and consalidated
subsidiarios as of March 31, 2002 and 2084, and the related conselidated siatements of
income, sharcholders® equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
March 31, 2002, all expressed in ven. Our sudits were made in gccordance with auditing
stundards, procedures and  praciices generally accepted and applicd in Japan and,
accordingly, inchuded such tests of the accounting tecords and such other audiling
procedures ax we considercd necessory in Hhe circumsiances,

In our opinion, the sccampanying conselidated finascial statements, expressed in yen,
present fairly the consolidated financial position of ACOM CO., LTD. and its consolidated
subsidiaries at March 31, 2002 and 2001, and the consolidated resulis of their openions
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2002 in
conformity with scoounting principles and pesctices gencratly sccepted in Japan applied on
2 consistent basis.

As deseribed in Nate 2 10 the consolidated financial statements, ACOM CG,, LTD. and
consolidated subsidineies have adopted new sceounting staadards for financial instruments,
retiremeny benmefits, and forelgn currency transactions in the preparation of their
consolidated finapcial statements for the year ended March 31, 2001,

The U.S dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial stalements with
respact to the year ended March 31, 2002 sre presented solely for convenience,  Our audit
also included the: wanslation of ven amounts inte LS. dullar amounts and, in our apision,
such trapsistion has been made on the basis described in Nole 3 fo the consolidated

financial statements,
_Shim ik,

June 27, 2000

Sex Note I to the consolideted financial stutemoents which explains the basiy of preparing
the comsolidated financial starements of ACOM CO., LTD. wnder Jupancse accounting
principles and practices.
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Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets

ACOM CO.,LTD.
Thousands of
US. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 3)
March 31 2002 2001 2002
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 104,935 ¥ 92573 $§ 787,504
Bank deposits (Note 4) 1,194 — 8,960
Marketable securities 347 293 2,604
Loans receivable (Note 4) 1,616,837 1,496,237 12,133,861
Accounts receivable 192,726 169,911 1,446,348
Merchandise 6,715 6,715 50,393
Prepaid expenses 7121 6,411 53,440
Short-term loans to a subsidiary 100 — 750
Deposit for redemption of convertible notes (Note 4} 50,000 — 375,234
Deferred tax assets (Note 6) 29,481 20,620 221,245
Other current assets 14,091 12,881 105,748
Allowance for bad debts (75,640) (60,610) (567,654)
Total current assets 1,947,911 1,745,036 14,618,469
Property and equipment:
Land 14,538 20,303 109,103
Buildings and structures 44,645 46,963 335,046
Equipment 34,760 32,511 260,863
93,945 99,778 705,028
Accumulated depreciation (41,033) (38,549) (307,939)
Property and equipment, net (Note 4) 52,911 61,229 397,080
Investments and other assets:
Investments in securities (Note 4) 21,416 25,124 160,720
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries and affiliates 41,748 15,498 313,305
Telephone rights and other intangible assets 1,218 1,653 9,140
Rental deposits 11,865 11,906 89,043
Prepaid pension expenses 3,605 4,086 27,054
Deferred tax assets (Note 6) 3,456 517 25,936
Other 13,176 12,448 98,881
Allowance for bad debts (2,060) (1,290) (15,459)
Total investments and other assets 94,427 69,944 708,645
Total assets ¥2,095251 ¥1876210 $15724,210

See accompanying notes to non-consolidated financial statements.
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Thousands of

U.S. Doliars
Millions of Yen (Note 3)
March 31 2002 2001 2002
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans (Note 4) ¥ 13562 ¥ 19187 $ 101,778
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 4) 401,297 338,233 3,011,609
Accounts payable 2,948 3.071 22,123
Accrued income taxes (Note 6) 42,519 39,864 319,091
Accrued expenses 13,783 11,408 103,437
Deferred income on installment sales 28,002 26,712 210,146
Allowance for loss on debt guarantees (Note 10) 12 — 90
Other current liabilities 2,341 3,100 17,568
Total current liabilities 504,468 441,577 3,785,876
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt {Note 4) 1,003,106 925,746 7,528,000
Allowance for employees' retirement benefits (Note 5) 2,832 2,745 21,253
Allowance for directors' and statutory auditors' retirement benefits 886 813 6,649
Other long-term liabilities 3,242 2,494 24,330
Total long-term liabilities 1,010,066 931,800 7,580,232
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 10)
Shareholders' equity:
Common stock, ¥50 par value per share:
Authorized: 533,200,000 shares
Issued: 146,630,880 shares at March 31, 2002 and 2001 17,282 17,282 129,696
Additional paid-in capital 25,772 25,772 193,410
Legal reserve (Note 7) 4,320 4,320 32,420
Retained earnings (Note 12) 536,014 452,259 4,022,619
Net unrealized gains on other securities (Note 8) 1,128 3,197 8,465
Less: Treasury stock, at cost (Note 11):
347,383 shares and 10 shares at March 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively (3,802) (0] (28,532)
Total shareholders' equity 580,716 502,833 4,358,093
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ¥2,095251 ¥1876210 $15724,210




Non-Consolidated Statements of Income

ACOMCO.,LTD.

Thousands of

U.5. Doltars
Millions of Yen (Note 3)
Year ended March 31 2002 2001 2000 2002
Operating income:
Interest on loans receivable ¥373,235 ¥ 341,456 ¥ 316,490 $2,801,013
Fees from credit card business 3,692 2,323 451 27,707
Fees from installment sales financing 16,278 14,287 11,136 122,161
Fees from credit guarantees 114 — — 855
Other financial income 23 74 367 172
Rental income — 1,591 6,395 —
Sales — 103 320 —
Other operating income 7,474 6,875 6,605 56,090
Total operating income 400,818 366,712 341,767 3,008,015
Operating expenses:
Financial expenses 28,622 28,933 29,250 214,799
Cost of sales — 81 247 —
General and administrative expenses (Notes 5 and 9) 133,237 127.535 120,432 999,902
Provision for bad debts 69,984 51,654 47,461 525,208
Provision for loss on debt guarantees 12 — — 90
Total operating expenses 231,857 208,205 197,392 1,740,015
Operating profit 168,961 158,507 144,374 1,268,000
Other income (expenses):
Other interest and dividend income 474 646 330 3,557
Net loss on sale or disposal of fixed assets (6,240) (4,343) (2,860) (46,829)
Loss on revaluation of marketable securities — — (622) —
Loss on sale of investments in securities — (155) — —_
Loss on revaluation of investments in securities (411) (1,340) (106) (3,084)
Loss on settlement of investments in a mutual insurance
company — (1,000) — —
Loss on settlement of a subsidiary — — (171) —
Gain on termination of a leveraged lease contract — 299 634 —
Net gain on change in accounting standard for employees'
retirement benefits — 1,256 — —
Other, net 983 (954) (1,365) 7,377
Total other expenses, net (5,193) (5,592) (4,161) (38,971)
Income before income taxes 163,767 152,915 140,213 1,229,020
Income taxes (Note 6):
Current 79,360 74,950 69,030 595,572
Deferred (10,370) (2,791) (2,854) (77,823)
Total income taxes 68,989 72,158 66,175 517,741
Net income ¥ 94,777 ¥ 80,757 ¥ 74,038 $ 711,272
Amounts per share (in yen and U.S. dollars):
Net income
Basic ¥ 647.31 ¥ 550.75 ¥ 504.93 $ 4.85
Diluted 625.95 531.92 498.22 4.69
Cash dividends 80.00 65.00 55.00 0.60

See accompanying notes to norn- lidated financial 1t
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Non-Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

ACOM CO,,LTD.

Balance at March 31, 1999

Adjustment for the cumulative
effect on prior years of
recognizing deferred income
taxes

Net income

Cash dividends

Bonuses to directors

Transfer to legal reserve

Net decrease in treasury stock
Balance at March 31, 2000

Net income

Cash dividends

Bonuses to directors

Transfer to legal reserve

Net unrealized gains on other
securities

Net increase in treasury stock
Balance at March 31, 2001

Net income

Cash dividends

Bonuses to directors

Net unrealized gains on other
securities

Net increase in treasury stock
Balance at March 31, 2002

Balance at March 31, 2001
Net income
Cash dividends
Bonuses to directors

Net unrealized gains on other
securities

Net increase in treasury stock
Balance at March 31, 2002

See accarnpanying notes to non-canselidated financial staterments.

Thousands Miltions of Yen
Net
unrealized
Number of Additiona) gains on
shares of Common paid-in Legal Retained other Treasury
common stock stock capital reserve earnings securitles stock
146,630 ¥ 17,282 ¥ 25,772 ¥ 2769 ¥ 297524 ¥ — ¥ )}
— — — — 17,701 —
— - — — 74038 — —
— — — — (7.331) — —
_ _ _ _ (1) —_ —_
— — — 737 137 — —
— — — — — — 0
146,630 17,282 25,7172 3,507 381,154 — )
— — — — 80,757 — —
- - — - (8,797) — -
— — — 813 (813) — —
— — — — — 3,107 —
— — S - - ©)
146,630 17,282 25,7172 4,320 452,259 3,197 0)
— — — — 94,777 —_ —
— — — —  (10.983) — —
- - - - — (2,069 -
— — — — — — (3,802)
146,630 ¥ 17,282 ¥ 25772 ¥ 4320 ¥ 536,014 ¥ 1,128 ¥ (3,802)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 3)
Net
unrealized
Additional galns on
Common paid-in Legal Retained other Treasury
stock capital reserve earnings securiies stock
$129696 $193410 $32420 $3394,063 $23992 § )]
—_ — — 711,272 — —
— — — (82,424) — —
— — - (292) — —
_ — - —  (15,527) -
— — — — —  (28532)
$129,696 $193410 $32,420 $4,022,619 $ 8465 §(28,532)




€4

Non-Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
ACOMCO.,LTD.

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 3)
Year ended March 31 2002 2001 2000 2002
Operating activities:
Income before income taxes ¥163,767 ¥ 152915 ¥140,213 $1,229,020
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization 6,494 6,524 6,589 48,735
Increase in allowance for bad debts 15,800 7,600 10,000 118,574
Increase in allowance for loss on debt guarantees 12 — — 90
Increase in allowance for employees' retirement benefits 86 2,745 — 645
Increase (decrease) in allowance for directors' and
statutory auditors’ retirernent benefits 73 (142) 83 - .47
Non-operating interest and dividend income 474) (646) (330 3,557)
Net loss on sale or disposal of fixed assets 6,240 4,343 2,860 46,829
Bond issuance expenses 491 551 1,781 3,684
Loss on revaluation of marketable securities — — 622 —
Loss on sale of investments in securities — 155 — —
Loss on revaluation of investments in securities 411 1,340 106 3,084
Loss on settlement of a subsidiary — — 171 _
Loss on settlement of investments in a mutual insurance
company — 1,000 —_ —
Gain on termination of a leveraged lease contract — (299) (634) —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in loans receivable (120,600) (148,480) (141,355) (905,065)
Increase in notes and accounts receivable (22,814) (41,486) (37,032) (171,212)
Decrease in merchandise — 20 34 —
Increase in prepaid expenses (709) (312) (85) (5,320)
(Increase) decrease in other current assets (1,545) 974) 6,088 (11,594)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid pension expenses 480 (4,086) — 3,602
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable (122) 655 999 (915)
Increase in accrued expenses 2,386 732 2,556 17,906
Increase in deferred income on installment sales 1,290 4,962 5,794 9,681
Bonuses paid to directors (39) (41) (41) (292)
Other, net (1,247) (432) (555) 9,358)
Subtotal 49,981 (13,354) (2,133) 375,091
Non-operating interest and dividends received 574 648 336 4,307
Income taxes paid (76,704) (73.103) (67,482) {(575,639)
Net cash used in operating activities ¥ (26,149) ¥ (85,809) ¥ (69,278) $ (196,240)

(Continued)
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Thousands of

USS. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 3)
2002 2001 2000 2002

Investing activities:
Decrease in time deposits and marketable securities ¥ 1252 ¥ 7418 ¥ 12,350 $ 9,395
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 2,279 1,269 1,175 17,103
Purchases of property and equipment (6,115) (6,256) (3.591) (45,891)
Proceeds from maturity or sale of investments in securities —_ 1,719 258 —
Increase in investments in securities (1,175) (1,896) (609) (8,818)
Additions to investments in and advances to subsidiaries

and affiliates (26,500) (1,789) (1,938) (198,874)
Proceeds from settlement or repayment of investments

in and advances to subsidiaries and affiliates 150 100 2,549 1,125
Proceeds from termination of a leveraged lease contract — 170 340 —
Proceeds from sale of AV rental business 350 595 — 2,626
Increase in other investments (45) (517) (788) (337)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (29,803) 813 9,747 (223,662)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt 481,210 425,472 415,586 3,611,332
Payments on principal of long-term debt (392,484) (335,288) (292,714) (2,945,470)
Decrease in short-term loans (5,625) (481) (122,629) (42,213)
(Increase) decrease in treasury stock (3,801) (0) 0 (28,525)
Cash dividends paid (10,986) (8,800) (7,332) (82,446)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 68,312 80,902 (7,088) 512,660
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1 0 45. 7
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12,361 (4,093) (66,574) 92,765
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 92,573 96,667 163,241 694,731
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ¥104,935 ¥ 92,573 ¥ 96,667 $ 787,504

See accompanying notes to non-consolidated financial statements,
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Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
ACOM CO,, LTD.

1. Basis of Presenting the Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying non-consolidated financial statements of ACOM CO., LTD. (the "Company") relate to the Company only,
with investments in subsidiaries and affiliates being stated at cost, and have been prepared in accordance with accounting princi-
ples generally accepted in Japan and the "Form of Standard Financial Statements in the Consumer Finance Business" (issued by

the Federation of Moneylenders Associations of Japan on April 25, 1993).

The accompanying non-consolidated financial statements have been compiled from the non-consolidated financial statements
filed with the Prime Minister of Japan (the "PM") in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan. Accordingly, the
accompanying non-consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the non-consolidated financial position, results
of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdic-
tions other than Japan. Certain items presented in the original non-consolidated financial statements filed with the PM have been

reclassified for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

Although non-consolidated statements of cash flows are still not required in Japan, such statements have been prepared for the
purpose of inclusion in these non-consolidated financial statements, after reclassifications made in conformity with the relevant

regulations concerning the preparation and presentation of consolidated statements of cash flows.

As permitted under the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan, amounts of less than one million yen have been omitted. As a
result, the totals shown in the accompanying non-consolidated financial statements (both in yen and in U S. dollars) do not nec-

essarily agree with the sums of the individual amounts.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments, including time deposits with banks, bond investment funds and marketable

securities purchased under resale agreements with a maturity of three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents.

(b) Foreign currency transactions _

Effective April 1, 2000, in accordance with the revised "Accounting Standard for Foreign Currency Transactions” issued by the
Business Accounting Deliberation Council (the "BADC") on October 22, 1999, all monetary assets and liabilities, regardless of
short-term or long-term, denominated in foreign currencies are translated into yen at the exchange rates prevailing as of the fiscal
year end, and resulting gains and losses are included in income. In prior years, assets and liabilities other than short-term mone-
tary assets and liabilities were translated at historical rates. The effect of this change on the accompanying non-consolidated finan-

cial statements was immaterial.
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(c) Marketable securities and investments in securities

Effective April 1, 2000, the Company adopted the "Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” issued by the BADC on
January 22, 1999. Under this Standard, marketable securities and investments in securities are classified by their holding objectives
into trading, held-to-maturity and other securities. Trading securities are valued at market prices and the resulting gains or losses
are included in income. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortized cost. Other securities are valued at market prices and
the resulting gains or losses are stated, net of tax, in the shareholders' equity section in the accompanying non-consolidated bal-
ance sheets, except that any impairment loss is recorded and charged to income. In prior years, marketable securities and invest-
ments in securities for which market prices are available were valued at the lower of moving-average cost or market. The effect of

this change was to increase income before income taxes for the year ended March 31, 2001 by ¥30 million.

Furthermore, as a result of examination of the respective holding objectives at the beginning of this fiscal year, held-to-maturity
and other securities with a maturity within one year, and those with the same characteristics as deposits, were reclassified to
"Marketable securities” in the current assets section; and securities falling outside these categories were reclassified to "Investments
in securities” in the investments and other assets section. This reclassification had the effect of reducing marketable securities in
current assets by ¥15,853 million and increasing investrnents in securities in non-current assets by the same amount as of March

31, 2001.

Other securities for which market prices are not available are stated at moving-average cost.

(d) Merchandise
Merchandise primarily consists of paintings and is stated at individually specified cost.

(e) Allowance for bad debts

As a result of the adoption of the "Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” effective April 1, 2000, mentioned in (c) above,
to cover possible losses on collection of loans and other receivables, the Company provided for an allowance {i} with respect to
ordinary debts, based on the historical rate of write-off, and (ii) with respect to other specific debts whose recovery is doubtful,
based on estimated write-off amounts, after considering the likelihood of recovery on an individual basis. In prior years, the
allowance for bad debts of the Company was provided at the maximum amount allowable for income tax purposes plus an esti-

mated amount based on management's assessment of the loan portfolio,

Loan balances are written off in cases where (i) the Company has confirmed the death or bankruptcy of the debtor or has volun-
tarily waived repayment of the loan, and (ii) the amounts due have not been collected for a certain period (even after follow-up

requests for payment) because of the inability on the part of the debtor or the guarantor to pay.

(f) Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation of property and equipment is computed by the declining-balance method

at rates based on the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.

(g) Share and bond issuance expenses

Share and bond issuance expenses are charged to income when incurred.

From the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002, in accordance with the "Form of Standard Financial Statements in the Consumer
Finance Business" revised on May 10, 2001, bond issuance expenses were reclassified from "Other, net" in the other income
(expenses) section to "Financial expenses” in the operating expenses section. The effect of this reclassification was to increase
operating expenses by ¥491 million ($3,684 thousand) and decreasing operating profit and other expenses by the same amount
for the year ended March 31, 2002.
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(h) Allowance for loss on debt guarantees
The Company has entered into affiliations with Japanese regional banks and an unconsolidated affiliate to provide credit guaran-
tees for personal loans held by those banks and the affiliate. To cover possible loss on debt guarantees, the Company provided for

an allowance based on the historical rates of fulfillment of guarantee obligation and subsequent write-off of the guaranteed loans.

(i) Pension plans )
Effective April 1, 2000, the Company adopted the "Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits" issued by the BADC on June 16,
1998.

Under this Standard, allowance for employees' retirement benefits should be recognized at the net total of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, plus any actuarial gains (less any actuarial losses) not yet recognized, minus
any past service cost not yet recognized, minus the fair value at the balance sheet date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obli-
gations are to be settled directly. If the amount determined above is negative (an asset}, such asset should be recorded as prepaid

pension expenses.

Net retirement benefit expense or income should be recognized at the net total of current service cost and interest cost, minus the
expected return on any plan assets, minus any actuarial gains (less any actuarial losses) and past service cost recognized during the

year, plus any retirement benefits paid as a lump sum.

To determine the present value of a defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and, where applicable, past

service cost, the project unit credit method is used,

Actuarial gains or losses and past service cost should be recognized for each defined benefit plan over a period not exceeding the
expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in that plan. The Company has recognized actuarial
gains or losses evenly over the five years following the respective fiscal years when such gains or losses are identified. In addition,

the Company has recognized past service cost evenly over five years from the time of its origination.

Any transition benefit liability or prepayment existing at the initial adoption of this Standard should be recognized over a period
not exceeding 15 years. The Company recognized such transition liability and prepayment immediately in the year ended March
31, 2001 and the resulting net gain was stated as "Net gain on change in accounting standard for employees' retirement benefits”

in the accompanying non-consolidated statement of income for the year then ended.

As a result of this change, prepaid pension expenses amounting to ¥4,086 million and allowance for employees' retirement bene-
fits amounting to ¥2,745 million were recorded in the accompanying non-consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2001. This
change also had the effect of reducing retirement benefit expenses by ¥99 million, increasing operating profit by the same amount,

and increasing income before income taxes by ¥1,355 million for the year ended March 31, 2001.

(j) Allowance for directors’ and statutory auditors’ retirement benefits
The allowance for directors’ and statutory auditors' retirement benefits is provided at the amount which would have been
required to be paid if all directors and statutory auditors had voluntarily terminated their services as of the balance sheet date.

This amount has been determined in accordance with the Company's internal rules.

(k) Leases
Non-cancelable lease transactions are accounted for as operating leases regardless of whether such leases are classified as operating
or finance leases, except that lease agreements which stipulate the transfer of ownership of the leased assets to the lessee are

accounted for as finance leases.
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(1) Recognition of interest income and expense
Interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis. However, the Company computes accrued interest income on
loans receivable at the interest rate stipulated in the Interest Rate Restriction Law of Japan or the contracted interest rate,

whichever is lower.

(m) Recognition of fees from installment sales financing
Fees from customers and participating stores have principally been prorated by the respective number of installments, and the

prorated amounts have been recognized as income when they became due (the "sum-of-the-months' digits method").

(n) Recognition of fees from credit guarantees

Fees from credit guarantees have been recognized on an accrual basis using the credit-balance method.

(o) Income taxes

Effective April 1, 1999, the Company adopted the liability method for tax-effect accounting in accordance with an amendment to
the "Regulations Concerning Terminology, Forms and Methods of Preparation of Financial Statements, etc." The cumulative
effect of this change was reported in the accompanying non-consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity for the year ended

March 31, 2000 as "Adjustment for the cumulative effect on prior years of recognizing deferred income taxes."

(p) Derivative and hedging transactions
The Company has used interest rate swap agreements and interest rate options (interest rate caps in long positions only) solely in
order to hedge against risks of fluctuations in interest rates relating to its short-term and long-term loans in compliance with the

Company's internal rules.

Under the "Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments,”" derivative transactions are valued at market prices, except for hedg-
ing transactions whose gains or losses are deferred and recorded in the balance sheet until the hedged transactions are settled.
Moreover, if interest rate swaps are specifically tied to the hedged loan transactions, unrealized gains or losses on those swaps are
not recognized in the financial statements as such gains or losses are to be offset with those on the hedged transactions. Similarly,
if interest rate caps are specifically tied to the hedged loan transactions, fees paid for those caps are stated at amortized costs

regardless of their market prices.

(q) Net income per share
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock out-

standing during the year.

Diluted net income per share is based upon the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the

year, after consideration of the dilutive effect of the zero coupon convertible notes issued on August 2, 1999.

(r) Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior years' non-consolidated financial statements to conform to the current year's

presentation.
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3. U.S. Dollar Amounts

The translation of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts has been made, solely for convenience, as a matter of arithmetical com-

putation only, at the rate of ¥133.25 = US $1.00, the exchange rate prevailing on March 29, 2002. The translation should not be

construed as a representation that the yen amounts have been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into U.S. dol-

lars at the above or any other rate.

4. Short-Term Loans, Long-Term Debt and Pledged Assets

Long-term debt was summarized as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

March 31 2002 2001 2002
Unsecured loans mainly from banks and other financial institutions

at interest rates ranging from 0.80077% to 3.8% due through April 2007 ¥ 385,730 ¥ 279,715 $2,894,784
Loans with collateral mainly from banks and other financial institutions

at interest rates ranging from 0.8% to 3.8% due through March 2009 645,893 684,465 4,847,227
Loans with collateral from an overseas subsidiary at interest rate of 1.62%

due through March 2008 23,880 — 179,212
Unsecured bonds at interest rates ranging from 0.85% to 2.72% due through

May 2010 295,000 245,000 2,213,883
Unsecured zero coupon convertible notes” 50,000 50,000 375,234
Payables under trust agreements for certain installment sales receivables

due January 2003 3,900 4,800 29,268
Less: current portion (401,297) (338,233) (3,011,609)

¥1,003,106 ¥925,746 $7,528,000

* The unsecured zero coupon convertible notes fell due on March 31, 2002 without any conversion right exercised. As the due date and the following date were bank holidays at an overseas pay-
ment place, the actual redemption date was April 2, 2002. In advance of the due date, on March 28, 2002, the Company made a deposit with the paying agent amounting to ¥50,000 million
{$375.234 thousand), equivalent to the principal amount of the notes, which was stated in the accompanying nen-consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2002 as "Deposit for redemption of

convertible notes.”

Assets pledged as collateral for substantially short-term and long-term loans from banks and other financial institutions were as

follows:
Thousands of
Milllons of Yen U.S. Dollars
March 31 2002 2001 2002
Bank deposits ¥ 1,194 ¥ — 3 8,960
Loans receivable 688,230 681,878 5,164,953
Property and equipment, net 2,068 2,465 15,519
Investments in securities — 2,798 —
¥ 691,492 ¥ 687,143 $5,189,433
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At March 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had a commitment, at the lenders’ request, to furnish at any time, collateral pledged
on ¥147,347 million ($1,105,793 thousand) and ¥165,801 million of the loans receivable of ¥688,230 million ($5,164,953 thou-
sand) and ¥681,878 million shown in the previous table, respectively. The pledged collateral which the lenders could require cov-

ered the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U5, Dotlars
March 31 . 2002 2001 2002
Short-term loans ¥ 1,000 ¥ 2,000 $ 7,504
Current portion of long-term debt 43,582 51,137 327,069
Long-term debt 102,460 112,404 768,930

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt subsequent to March 31, 2002 were summarized as follows:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 ¥ 401,297 $ 3,011,609
2004 ‘ 314,403 2,359,497
2005 288,892 2,168,045
2006 | 188872 1,417,425
2007 102,626 770,176
2008 and thereafter 108,312 812,848

¥1404,403  $10,539,609

For efficient procurement of working capital, the Company has entered into commitment line contracts with four financial insti-
tutions and an overseas subsidiary, which provided the Company with the commitment facilities in the aggregate amount of
¥181,480 million ($1,361,951 thousand) as of March 31, 2002. The unused facilities maintained by the Company as of March 31,
2002 amounted to ¥157,600 million ($1,182,739 thousand).

5. Pension Plans
The Company has, jointly with certain of its domestic subsidiaries, a funded non-contributory tax-qualified retirement pension
plan and a funded contributory welfare pension plan, both of which are defined benefit plans and together cover substantially all

full-time employees who meet certain eligibility requirements.

In the year ended March 31, 2000, contributions made to the tax-qualified retirement pension fund amounted to ¥2,593 million

and were charged to income.

For the information as of and for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, refer to Note 7 of the consolidated financial state-

ments.



6. Income Taxes

The Company is subject to a number of taxes based on income. Corporation, inhabitants' and enterprise taxes are charged to the
income tax account. The aggregate statutory tax rate applicable to the Company was approximately 40.9% for 2002, 2001 and
2000.

Reconciliation between the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate as a percentage of income before income taxes was as fol-

lows:

Year ended March 31 2001 2000

Statutory income tax rate 40.9% 40.9%
Taxation on undistributed income 5.0 5.2
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes 0.1 0.1
Inhabitants' per capita taxes 0.2 0.2
Other 1.0 0.8

Effective income tax rate 47.2% 47.2%

Reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2002 was omitted as the statutory tax rate did not significantly differ from the effec-

tive tax rate.

The tax effects of the temporary differences which give rise to a significant portion of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of

March 31, 2002 and 2001 were presented below:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen US. Dollars
March 31 2002 2001 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Bad debt write-offs ¥ 9,093 ¥ 5871 $ 68,240
Provision for bad debts 11,727 8,298 88,007
Accrued bonuses 916 800 6,874
Allowance for employees' retirement benefits 1,157 1,122 8,682
Allowance for directors' and statutory auditors' retirement benefits 362 332 2,716
Accrued interest income 1,978 1,247 14,844
Accrued enterprise tax 4,036 3,031 30,288
Depreciation and amortization 5,180 3.839 38,874
Consumption tax 244 177 1,831
Revaluation of marketable securities 237 91 1,778
Loss on investments in golf club and other membership 181 149 1,358
Other 74 55 555
Total gross deferred tax assets 35,191 25,017 264,097
Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid pension expenses - (1,473) (1,670) (11,054)
Net unrealized gains on other securities (779) (2,210) (5,846)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (2,253) (3.880) (16,908)

Net deferred tax assets ¥32,938 ¥ 21,137 $247,189
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7. Legal Reserve

The Commercial Code of Japan provides that an amount equal to at least 10% of cash dividends and directors' and statutory audi-
tors' bonuses in respect of each fiscal period be appropriated to the legal reserve until the sum of such reserve and capital reserve,
including additional paid-in capital, equals 25% of stated capital. This reserve is not available for dividends but may be used to

reduce or eliminate a deficit or may be transferred to stated capital by resolution of the shareholders.

8. Net Unrealized Gains on Other Securities

As described in Note 2{c}, net unrealized gains on other securities were stated in the shareholders' equity section in the accompa-
nying non-consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 as a result of the application of the market value method to
evaluation of marketable securities and investments in securities. However, under the Commercial Code of Japan, such gains are

not available for dividends.

9. Leases

The following pro forma amounts represent the acquisition costs, accumulated depreciation and net book value of leased equip-
ment as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 and the related depreciation expense and interest expenses for the years ended March 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, which would have been reflected in the non-consolidated balance sheets and the related non-consolidated

statements of income if finance lease accounting had been applied to the finance lease transactions accounted for as operating

leases:
Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S, Dollars
Acquisiton  Accumulated Net
Acquisition costs Accumulated depreciation Net book value costs depreciation book value
March 31 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2002 2002
Equipment ¥12,082 ¥15930 ¥7357 ¥9,613 ¥4,725 ¥6,317 $90,671 $55212 $35459
Thousands of
Miltions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Year ended March 31 2002 2001 2000 2002
Depreciation ¥3,547 ¥ 4,285 ¥5,119 $ 26,619
Interest 176 247 351 1,320

Lease expenses relating to finance lease transactions accounted for as operating leases amounted to ¥3,780 million ($28,367 thou-
sand), ¥4,581 million and ¥5,481 million for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments subsequent to March 31, 2002 for finance lease transactions accounted for as operating leases

were summarized as follows:

Thousands of
Year ending March 31 Millions of Yen USS. Dollars
2003 ¥2.436 $ 18,281

2004 and thereafter 2,400 18,011
: ¥4,836 $ 36,292




10. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Future payments under rental leases subsequent to March 31, 2002 amounted to ¥5,012 million ($37,613 thousand).

The Company makes loans to customers primarily in the form of revolving credit-line contracts whereby a maximum credit
amount is assigned to a customer who is then able to borrow repeatedly within the limit of the facility. At March 31, 2002, the
unexercised portion of such facilities amounted to ¥526,860 million ($3,953,921 thousand), including ¥274,233 million
($2.058,033 thousand) for customers with zero outstanding balances. As a certain portion of revolving credit-line contracts lapse

without ever being used, the unexercised facilities will not necessarily affect the future cash flow of the Company.

At March 31, 2002, contingent liabilities on the personal loans for which the Company provided credit guarantees amounted to
¥9,526 million ($71,489 thousand), net of allowance for loss on debt guarantees in the amount of ¥12 million ($90 thousand). In

addition, at March 31, 2002, the Company was contingently liable as guarantor of the following subsidiaries and affiliates:

Name Amount of guaranteed debt
ACOM ESTATE CO., LTD. ¥2,895 million ($21,726 thousand)

JCK CREDIT CQ., LTD. ¥39,713 million ($298,033 thousand)

SIAM A&C CO., LTD. THB 2,420 million and US $3,125 thousand
CHAILEASE ACOM FINANCE CO., LTD. NT $100 million

Refer to Note 4 regarding pledged assets.

11. Stock Option Plan

The Company has a stock option plan for the granting of non-transferable options to certain eligible directors and key employees
of the Company. Options are granted for terms of five years to purchase the aggregate of 346,800 shares of common stock of the
Company at ¥10,682 ($80.16), equivalent to 103% of the higher of the closing price of the shares on the day prior to August 1,
2001 (the date of grant) or the monthly average closing price for July, 2001 (the month prior to the date of grant). The options are
exercisable beginning on Juty 1, 2003.

To provide for exercise of the options, in August 2001, the Company purchased 346,800 shares of common stock in the aggregate
amount of ¥3,796 million ($28,487 thousand) from the stock market, which were included in "Treasury stock" of the sharehold-

ers' equity section of the accompanying non-consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2002.

12. Subsequent Events
On April 4, 2002, the Company issued ¥10,000 million of 1.61% unsecured bonds due April 4, 2006 based on the approval by the

Board of Directors on February 18, 2002. The net proceeds from the sale of the bonds will be utilized for funding loans receivable.

The Company issued ¥10,000 million of 1.73% unsecured bonds due June 6, 2008 and ¥10,000 million of 2.70% unsecured bonds
due June 26, 2012, on June 6, 2002 and June 26, 2002, respectively, based on the approval by the Board of Directors on May 15,

2002. The net proceeds from the sale of the bonds will be utilized for funding loans receivable.

The following appropriations of retained earnings, which have not been reflected in the accompanying non-consolidated financial
statemnents for the year ended March 31, 2002, were approved at a shareholders’ meeting held on June 27, 2002:

Millions of Yen
Cash dividends (¥40.00 = US $0.30) ¥5851

Bonuses to directors 38
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The Board of Directors and Shareholders
ACOM CO,, LTD.

We have pudited the non-consolidated balance sheets of ACOM CO., LTD. a8 of Masch 31,

2002 andt 2001, and the refoted non-consolidated statements of income, sharcholders” equity,
and cash flows for cach of the three years in the period coaded Moarch 31, 2002, ol expressed

in ven. Our audits were made in accordance with auditing standards, procedures and

practices penerally sccepted and applied n Japan and, sccordingly, fncluded such tesis of
the accouating reconds and such other anditing procedures a5 we considered necessary in the
chreumstances.

o our opinion, the sccompanying non-conseiidated financial siatements, cxpressed in yen,
present fairly the non-consolidated financial position of ACOM CO., LTD. at March 31,
2002 and 2001, and the results of its non-consolidated operations and s cash fows for
each of the three years in the petiod ended March 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting
prinviples and praciices geserslly accepted i Japan applied on a consistent basis,

As described in Note 2 to the nan-consalidated financial statements, ACOM CO., LTD. has
adupted new accounting standards for financial instruments, retirernent benefits, and foredga
cureency ttansactions in the preparation of #s por-consolidined Hnaneial statements Bor the
vear ended March 31, 2001,

The US, dotlar amounts in the sccompanying non-consolidated financial statemonts with
respoct to the vear ended March 31, 2002 are presented solely for convenience.  Our sudit
also ncluded the teanslation of yen smounts into US. dollar amounts amd, in our opinios,
such translation has been made on the basis described in Note 3 to the non-consolidated

finmnciad statements,
Sl Mithons. (5~

June 27, 26K2

See Note 1w the nom-consolidated financiad srarements which explaing the bosis of
preparing the financial statements of ACOM €0, LTD. under Japonese accotoding
priveiples ard prociices.




JCK CREDIT CO,, LTD. !
Asahi-life Bldg. 3rd Floor,
14-1, Fuchu-cho 1-chome,
Fuchu-shi, Tokyo, Japan
Telephone : (042) 361-8111

. Principal Business:
{:Incorporated::.
¢ Paid:In Capital: . i
. Equity Owned by the Company:

Revenues

Instal

. lIment sales finance and loan business:
Coaism , T

¥500 million
00.0%
6,()‘17§miﬂion : s

IR Loan Servicing, Inc.

Trusty Koujimachi Bldg. 7th Floor,
4 Koujimachi 3-chome,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan
Telephone : (03) 5215-6511

«*Principal Busmess G

’ Paid-In Capxta]
i :Equlty Owned by the Company:
. Revenues : :

Incorporated

ACOM RENTAL CO, ETD.
ACOM Shinbashi Bldg. 3rd Floor,
11-1, Shinbashi 3-chome,
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan
Telephone: (03) 5401-0044

PrincipatBusinevs}s:m»'- i

Incorporated:: :
'qud In Capital:: :

=+ ' Equity Owned by the Company.»l

; Revenues

JLA INCORPORATED

Osaka Ekimae Dai 4 Bldg. 19th Floor,
11-4, Umeda 1-chome,

Kita-ku, Osaka, Japan

Telephone: (06) 6347-1281

* ‘Principal Business: 1
© ‘Incorporated:

. PaidIn Capital: 3200
quity Owned: by the Company 60:0%
{ Revenues: 1 o

ACOM RESEARCH INSTITUTE, INC.

15-11, Fujimi 2-chome,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan
Telephone: (03) 3239-4896

: Prindipal Business: '

pital: -

Equrty Owned by the Company: :
; ‘Feevenues B S :

o ¥2o'm1'1ho
1000%
~ ®emillion

ni

AJAST Ltd,

15-11, Fujimi 2-chome,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan
Telephone: (03) 3221-9408

. Principal Business:
Incorporated

' Paid-In Capital: .

. Equity Owned by the Company: -
’;'Revenues o

;Feb 1992
¥4 rm].hon

25.0%; (75.0%) 3
i

surance agency bu.sme s

ACOM ESTATE CO., LTD.
Mine Bldg. 2nd Floor,
11-11, Fujimi 2-chome,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan
Telephone: (03) 3221-6950

i :Pald In: Caprtal”

- Principal Business::

Incorporated:

ABS CO., LTD,

1st Seiki Bldg. 3rd Floor,
2-2, Sotokanda 5-chome,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan
Telephone: (03) 3834-9215

| Principal Busmess
. ‘Incorporated

aid-In Capital

. Equity Owned by the Companyi .
2 Revenues: o L

. :Real estate
- :Mar. 1996

management in ]apan

Oct. 1997

- ¥30'million

0.0%,.(100.

Y1418 mill

A B PARTNER CQ.,, ITD.
Mine Bldg. 3rd Floor,
11-11 Fujimi 2-chome,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan
Telephone: (03) 3234-9301

- Principal Busmess
: Incorporated: -

2 Paid:In Cap1tal :
.+ Equity Owned by the Company:
| Revenues. -

‘ Temporary employment agenqes and back—ofﬁce semce: 3

‘Nov. 2000

: ¥300 milhon 4
. 100 0%: i
’ ,Z40.mdhon L

AVRS COLLTD.

15-11, Fujimi 2-chome,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan
Telephone:

| Principal Bu§jness£ .
. Incorporated::
- Paid-In Capital: = o
; :.'Equlty Owned by the Compan
"\-:Revenues o

SIAM A&C CO., TTD.

Ramaland Bldg. 13th Floor,

952 Rama IV Road, Suriyawongse,
Bangrak, Bangkok 10500, Thailand

v :Prin}cipalbl}biusi: es:
“/Tncorporated: .
“ PaidIn Capital: .
. Equity Owned by the Company:"

. ‘Revenues:

fSep 1996
THBIZO mﬂhon
749, 0% ;
. THB 4991

nﬂlion Do




ACOM CAPIFAL CO., LID. | Principal Businesst (10

3 anc1al semces for ACOM (Specxa.l Pirpo

Ugland House, South Church Street, [ Incorporated
P.O.Box 309, _ Paid-In Capital: o
George Town, Grand Cayman, | »Equlty Owned by the Company: , 100 ()%

Cayman Islands, British West Indies Revenues : US$3 3]0 thousand Tl
ACOM PACIFIC, INC, rmcxpal Busmes © Lease of health resorts in Guam (U SA Yol
1008 Pacific New Building, : __:'Incorporated
238 Archbishop E.C. Flores Street, -Paid-In’ Caplta] L
Hagatna, Guam . Equlty Owned by the Compan :
: ‘Revenues
ACOM (US.A.) INC. Princip‘_alvBus‘iness:
229 South State Street, Incox‘poféted
Dover, Kent County, DE, [ Pald In Capital: i :US$17 rmlhon
USA. ¢ Equity Owned by the Company: L 1000%
. Reventles: . USST, 775 thousand 5

ACOM INTERNATIONAL, INC. - Prmcxpal Busmess

229 South State Street, © Incorporated’
Dover, Kent County, DE, - Paid-In Capital:
US.A. - Equity Owned by the C ’mpan ):
. Revenues: . . US$7,775 thousand 3.7
1990 K PARTNERSHIP f v5vPrineipal Business:

—_ . Incorporated: '
 Paid-In Capital:. =

Equity Owned by the Company.,
' Revenues:

,US$328 thousand
0.0%,(100.0%)3 = v
S$3899thousand7’3"“'

Tokyo-Mitsabishi Cash One Lid

Principal Busines ~ Unsecured loan busin

Nihonbashi Plaza Bldg. 12th Floor, Incorporated: - August 2001 ¢
3-4 Nihonbashi 2-chome, ' Paid-In Capltal : ¥20,000 million
Chuo-ku, Tokyo, Japan ‘- Equity Owned by the Compan}" o 35.0%
Telephone : (03) 5299-6625 “ Revenues: = . Yimillion

ASCOTCO, LTD. 10

Kudanshita Tokyu Shin-Sakura Bldg. 5F, :

3-3, Kudankita 1-chome, _ - :Oct 1999:

Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan - Pald In. Capltal - Y450 mﬂhon

Telephone: (03) 5212-4121 o Equity ( Owned by the Compan : 38.25% ‘
Revenue E ¥54 million .

o Flducmry business to open up, on ‘the Internet, new consuimer’
with respect 10 unsecuxed loans, busmess loan, and credlt card

CHAILEASE ACOM FINANCE CO.,, LD,  Principal Busi | Hire purchase busmess in: Talwa.n :
4F, 102 TUN HWA North Road, _ Incorporated: June2000: -
Taipei, Taiwan R.O.C. | Paid-In Capital . 150 mllhon yuan

| Equity Owned by the Company L 400% P

| | Revenues; ‘91 million yuan 7

Notes: 1. Changed its company name from JUKI CREDIT CO., LTD. on September 1, 2001.
2. Started operation on July 2, 2001.
3. Figures in parentheses indicate indirect ownership by ACOM CO,, LTD.
4. Increased paid-in capital from ¥1.5 million to ¥3 million through allotment to the Company.
5. Suspended its operation, and further business scheme is under consideration.
6. The Company treated any entity deemed as being substantially controlled by the Company
as a consolidated subsidiary, even if it is less-than-majority owned.
7.Year ended December 2001.
8. Dissolved on December 31, 2001.
9. Started operation on March 4, 2002.
10. Changed its company name from E*NetCard CO., LTD. on August 1, 2001.






For Further Information

Investor Relations Office

Toyo Building, 8th Floor.

2-10, Nihonbashd -chome,
Chuo-ky, Tokyo 103-0027, Japan
Tel: (03)3270-3423

Fax: (03)3270-1742



